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EXPLANATORY NOTE
As previously disclosed under Item 2.01 of its Current Report on Form 8-K filed on May 9, 2022 (the “Original 8-K”), on May 6, 2022, PDC
Energy, Inc. (the “Company” or “PDC”) completed its previously announced acquisition of Great Western Petroleum, LLC (“Great Western”). The
consideration consisted of $542,500,000 in cash and 4,007,018 shares of the Company’s common stock. A portion of the cash consideration was placed
into escrow and is subject to certain post-closing adjustments. The Company borrowed $950 million under its revolving credit facility to finance the
transaction.
This Current Report on Form 8-K/A amends the Original 8-K to file the financial information required by Items 9.01(a) and 9.01(b) of Form 8-K.
Item 9.01. Financial Statements and Exhibits.
(a) Financial Statements of Business Acquired
Audited consolidated financial statements of Great Western as of December 31, 2021 (Successor), as of December 31, 2020 (Predecessor) and for
the period January 1, 2021 through February 22, 2021 (Predecessor), and the period February 23, 2021 through December 31, 2021 (Successor), are
included as Exhibit 99.1 to this Current Report on Form 8-K/A.
Unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements of Great Western as of March 31, 2022 (Successor), for the three months ended March 31,
2022 (Successor), for the period January 1, 2021 through February 22, 2021 (Predecessor), and for the period February 23, 2021 through March 31, 2021
(Successor), are included as Exhibit 99.2 to this Current Report on Form 8-K/A.
(b) Pro Forma Financial Information
The unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial statements (the “pro forma financials”) have been derived from the historical consolidated
financial statements of PDC and Great Western. Certain of Great Western’s historical amounts have been reclassified to conform to PDC’s financial
statement presentation. The pro forma financials, comprised of the unaudited pro forma condensed combined balance sheet as of March 31, 2022, the
related unaudited pro forma condensed combined statements of operations for the three month period ended March 31, 2022 and the twelve month period
ended December 31, 2021, give effect to the acquisition of Great Western as if the transaction had been completed on January 1, 2021. The supplemental
pro forma oil and natural gas reserves information as of December 31, 2021 gives effect to the acquisition of Great Western as if it had been completed on
January 1, 2021. The pro forma financial information, and the related notes thereto, are included in this filing as Exhibit 99.3 to this Current Report on
Form 8-K/A.
(c) Exhibits
Exhibit No.

Description

23.1
23.2
99.1

Consent of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, independent auditors of Great Western Petroleum, LLC.
Consent of Ryder Scott, L.P., independent reserve engineers of Great Western Petroleum, LLC.
The consolidated financial statements of Great Western Petroleum, LLC and its subsidiaries as of December
31, 2021 (Successor) and 2020 (Predecessor) and for the period January 1, 2021 through February 22, 2021
(Predecessor) and the period February 23, 2021 through December 31, 2021 (Successor).

99.2

The condensed consolidated financial statements of Great Western Petroleum, LLC and its subsidiaries as of
March 31, 2022 (Successor), for the three months ended March 31, 2022 (Successor), for the period January
1, 2021 through February 22, 2021 (Predecessor), and for the period February 23, 2021 through March 31,
2021 (Successor).
The unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial statements of PDC Energy, Inc.

99.3
104

Cover Page Interactive Data File (embedded within the Inline XBRL document).
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SIGNATURE
Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned
hereunto duly authorized.
Date: July 14, 2022

PDC ENERGY, INC.
By:
/s/ Nicole Martinet
Nicole Martinet
General Counsel, Senior Vice President and Corporate Secretary
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Exhibit 23.1
CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS
We hereby consent to the incorporation by reference in the Registration Statements on Form S-3 (No. 333-256308 and No. 333-215442) and Form
S-8 (No. 333-239433, No. 333-189685, No. 333-167945, No. 333-118215, No. 333-225596 and No. 333-235908), of PDC Energy, Inc. (the “Company”) of
our reports dated March 10, 2022 relating to the financial statements of Great Western Petroleum, LLC, which appears in this Current Report on Form 8K/A.

/s/ PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Denver, Colorado
July 14, 2022

Exhibit 23.2

TBPELS REGISTERED ENGINEERING FIRM F-1580
633 17TH STREET SUITE 1700
DENVER, COLORADO 80202

TELEPHONE (303) 339-8110

Consent of Independent Petroleum Engineers
We hereby consent to the incorporation by reference in this Current Report on Form 8-K/A, dated July 14, 2022 of PDC Energy, Inc. (the
“Company”) and in the Company’s Registration Statements on Form S-3 (No. 333-256308 and No. 333-215422) and Form S-8 (No. 333-239433, No. 333189685, No. 333-167945, No. 333-118215, No. 333-225596 and No. 333-235908), of all references to our firm and information from our reserves reports
as of December 31, 2021, dated January 14, 2022, relating to the oil and gas reserves of Great Western Petroleum, LLC.

/s/ Ryder Scott Company, L.P.
RYDER SCOTT COMPANY, L.P.
TBPELS Firm Registration No. F-1580
Denver, CO
July 14, 2022

EXHIBIT 99.1

Annual Report
Consolidated financial statements as of December 31, 2021 (Successor) and 2020
(Predecessor) and for the period January 1, 2021 through February 22, 2021
(Predecessor), the period February 23, 2021 through December 31, 2021
(Successor) and for the year ended December 31, 2020 (Predecessor)
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Report of Independent Auditors
To the Board of Managers of Great Western Petroleum, LLC
We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Great Western Petroleum, LLC and its subsidiaries (Predecessor
Company), which comprise the consolidated balance sheet as of December 31, 2020 and the related consolidated statements of operations,
of changes in members' equity and of cash flows for the period from January 1, 2021 to February 22, 2021, and for the year ended
December 31, 2020.
Management's Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control
relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.
Auditors’ Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements based on our audits. We conducted our audits in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, we consider internal control relevant to
the Company's preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal control.
Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated
financial statements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.
Opinion
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Great
Western Petroleum, LLC and its subsidiaries (Predecessor Company) as of December 31, 2020 and the results of their operations and their
cash flows for the period from January 1, 2021 to February 22, 2021, and for the year ended December 31, 2020 in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Denver, Colorado
March 10, 2022

Report of Independent Auditors
To the Board of Managers of Great Western Petroleum, LLC
Opinion
We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Great Western Petroleum, LLC and its subsidiaries (Successor) (the
“Company”), which comprise the consolidated balance sheet as of December 31, 2021 and the related consolidated statements of
operations, of changes in members' equity and of cash flows for the period from February 23, 2021 to December 31, 2021, including the
related notes (collectively referred to as the “consolidated financial statements”).
In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the
Company as of December 31, 2021 and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the period from February 23, 2021 to December
31, 2021 in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.
Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America (US GAAS). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of the Company and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in
accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
Responsibilities of Management for the Consolidated Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America; and for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control
relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.
In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or events, considered in the
aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern for one year after the date the financial
statements are available to be issued.
Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance
but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with US GAAS will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the
judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with US GAAS, we:
•
•
•
•
•

Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,whether due to fraud or error, and
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks.Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence
regarding the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal control. Accordingly,
no such opinion is expressed.
Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.
Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate,that raise substantial doubt about the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related matters that we identified during the audit.
Other Information
Management is responsible for the other information included in the annual report. The other information comprises management’s
discussion and analysis of financial condition and results of operations, but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our
auditors' report thereon. Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information, and we do not express an
opinion or any form of assurance thereon. In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read
the other information and consider whether a material inconsistency exists between the other information and the consolidated financial
statements or the other information otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work performed, we conclude that an
uncorrected material misstatement of the other information exists, we are required to describe it in our report.

/s/PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Denver, Colorado
March 10, 2022

GREAT WESTERN PETROLEUM, LLC AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(IN THOUSANDS EXCEPT PER SHARE INFORMATION)
(Successor)
December 31,
2021
ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable
Derivative instruments
Prepaid expenses and other assets

$

Total current assets
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT:
Oil and natural gas properties, successful efforts method, net
Other property and equipment
Total property, plant and equipment, net
NON-CURRENT ASSETS:
Restricted cash
Investment in unconsolidated entity
Derivative instruments
Other assets
Total assets
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Accrued liabilities
Accounts payable
Production taxes payable
Current portion of asset retirement obligations
Derivative instruments
Debt, net
Unit appreciation rights liability
Other liabilities

(Predecessor)
December 31,
2020

34,104
110,258
226
25,630

$

38,335
71,949
22,776
15,061

170,218

148,121

1,459,144
7,964

1,654,300
8,583

1,467,108

1,662,883

8,080
18,906
3,102
8,253

8,080
19,031
—
8,054

$

1,675,667

$

1,846,169

$

216,930
17,143
42,940
7,297
103,495
—
—
507

$

136,884
13,403
56,355
6,984
2,871
251,981
2,852
1,267

Total current liabilities

388,312

472,597

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Revolving credit facility
Debt, net
Production taxes payable
Asset retirement obligations
Derivative instruments
Other liabilities

242,000
300,883
79,053
4,749
3,436
5,632

339,000
72,992
38,023
9,697
2,100
6,844

Total non-current liabilities
Total liabilities

635,753

468,656

1,024,065

941,253

—

400,000

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (see NOTE 11)
TEMPORARY EQUITY:
Preferred units, $1,000 par value, 8.0% cumulative, liquidation preference equaling a multiple of invested capital
(“MOIC”) of the greater of 1.50 MOIC or 16.5% internal rate of return; 295,859 Preferred Units authorized, issued and
outstanding as of December 31, 2020.
MEMBERS’ EQUITY:
Members’ equity

651,602
$

Total liabilities and equity

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements
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1,675,667

504,916
$

1,846,169

GREAT WESTERN PETROLEUM, LLC AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
(IN THOUSANDS)

REVENUES:
Oil, NGL and natural gas revenue
OPERATING EXPENSES:
Lease operating expense
Gathering and transportation expense
Exploration expense
Production and severance tax
Depreciation, depletion and amortization
General and administrative expense
Unit appreciation rights benefit
Other operating expense
Total operating expenses
Operating income (loss)
OTHER INCOME (EXPENSE):
Interest expense, net
(Loss) gain on derivative instruments, net
Gain on purchase of 2021 Notes
Other (expense) income
Total other income (expense)

(Successor)
Period from February
23, 2021 through
December 31, 2021

(Predecessor)
Period from January 1,
2021 through February
22, 2021

Year Ended December
31, 2020

$

$

$

$

NET INCOME (LOSS)

609,971

342,323

37,051
9,377
3,983
50,842
127,608
16,507
—
865
246,233
363,738

6,953
1,481
722
9,937
45,670
6,887
—
—
71,650
25,009

49,550
12,054
6,751
30,738
298,552
31,590
(3,464)
3,134
428,905
(86,582)

(38,678)
(182,130)
—
1,172
(219,636)
144,102

(6,509)
(99,527)
—
23
(106,013)
(81,004)

(41,558)
228,866
15,856
(916)
202,248
115,666

$

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements
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96,659

(Predecessor)

$

GREAT WESTERN PETROLEUM, LLC AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF MEMBERS’ EQUITY
(IN THOUSANDS)

Predecessor balance at December 31, 2019
Preferred units paid-in-kind dividends, deemed dividends, and return (16.5% IRR)
Net income
Predecessor balance at December 31, 2020
Preferred units paid-in-kind dividends, deemed dividends, and return (16.5% IRR)
Net loss
Predecessor balance at February 22, 2021

$

Successor initial investment at February 23, 2021
Net income

$

Successor balance at December 31, 2021

$
See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements
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$

476,738
(87,488)
115,666
504,916
(3,353)
(81,004)
(84,357)

507,500
144,102
651,602

GREAT WESTERN PETROLEUM, LLC AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(IN THOUSANDS)
(Successor)
Period from
February 23, 2021
through December,
2021

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net income (loss)
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash provided by operating activities:
Exploration expense
Depreciation, depletion and amortization
Unit appreciation rights benefit
Amortization of debt discount and issuance costs
(Gain) loss on derivative instruments
Equity in (income) loss of unconsolidated entity
Gain on purchase of 2021 Notes
Other non-cash gain
Change in current assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable
Prepaid expenses and other assets
Accrued liabilities
Accounts payable
Production taxes payable
Due to/from affiliates
Unit appreciation rights settlement
Net cash provided by operating activities
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Exploration and development of oil and natural gas properties
Acquisition of oil and natural gas properties and land
Business combinations, net of restricted cash acquired
Other property and equipment
Investment in unconsolidated entity
Net cash receipts (payments) on settled derivative instruments and premiums
Net cash used in investing activities
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Proceeds from revolving credit facility
Repayments of revolving credit facility
Prepayment on redemption of senior notes
Repayments of senior notes
Payments of debt issuance costs
Distribution to preferred unitholders
Net cash used in financing activities
Net increase (decrease) in cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash
Cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash at beginning of period

$

$

Cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash at end of period
SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION:
Cash paid for interest, net of capitalized interest
SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF NON-CASH ACTIVITIES:
Oil and natural gas properties—change in due to/from affiliates
Oil and natural gas properties—change in accruals and accounts payable
Prepayment on senior notes
Accounts receivable included in derivative instrument
Accrued liability included in derivative instrument
Preferred unit dividends declared but not paid

144,102

$

(81,004)

(Predecessor)
Year Ended
December 31, 2020

$

115,666

3,983
127,608
—
3,071
182,130
148
—
(3,269)

722
45,670
—
601
99,527
(23)
—
—

6,751
298,552
(3,464)
5,895
(228,866)
345
(15,856)
—

12,433
(11,224)
50,441
(23,554)
14,240
—
(2,852)
497,257

(57,583)
(11,634)
(2,417)
27,352
13,375
—
—
34,586

2,827
8,527
(3,521)
(8,672)
(7,265)
75,169
(2,649)
243,439

(243,186)
(2,919)
—
(23)
—
(145,700)
(391,828)

(34,482)
—
—
—
—
5,170
(29,312)

(354,426)
(4,845)
6,055
(137)
(1,250)
177,724
(176,879)

480,000
(577,000)
—
—
(245)
—
(97,245)
8,184
34,000
42,184

—
—
(27,139)
—
(697)
(3,353)
(31,189)
(25,915)
46,415
20,500

334,500
(319,500)
—
(30,130)
(2,043)
(14,941)
(32,114)
34,446
11,969
46,415

$

$

32,170

3,562

38,667

—
8,086
251,514
—
11,393
—

—
7,660
—
5,476
2,850
—

(51,995)
5,647
—
6,158
2,725
2,555

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements
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(Predecessor)
Period from
January 1, 2021,
through February
22, 2021

GREAT WESTERN PETROLEUM, LLC AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NOTE 1—Organization and Nature of Operations
Great Western Petroleum, LLC (the “Company” or “GWP”) is owned by EIG Dunedin Equity Aggregator, L.P. (“EIG”), TPG Energy Solutions
Green, L.P. (“TPG”), GWP Holdings Corp 1 (“GWPHC”), EP Synergy Investments, Inc. (“EPSI”), ActOil Colorado, LLC (“ACTOIL”) and Great Western
Oil and Gas Company, LLC (“GWOG”) and was formed to explore, produce and develop oil and natural gas in northern Colorado. The Company was
initially formed on September 4, 2013 through the contribution of cash and assets to the proportion of 50.1% interest to GWOG and 49.9% interest to
ACTOIL. On July 1, 2017, the 50.1% interest owned by GWOG was allocated 1.95% to GWOG and 48.15% to GWPHC. On February 22, 2021, the
Company completed a recapitalization (“Recapitalization Transaction”) where all of GWP’s outstanding preferred units and common members’ equity
interests, along with cash contributed by one of the common members, were exchanged for new common units. Subsequent to the Recapitalization
Transaction EIG owns 47.6%, TPG owns 21.8%, GWPHC owns 12.0%, EPSI owns 10.6%, ACTOIL owns 7.5% and GWOG owns 0.5% of the
outstanding common units of GWP. GWP has a 100% interest in Grizzly Petroleum Company, LLC, Great Western Finance Corp and Great Western
Petroleum Midstream Holdings, LLC (“GWPMH”) (collectively with GWP, the “Company”). GWPMH has a 100% interest in Great Western Petroleum
Midstream 1, LLC (“GWPM”).
Through July 17, 2020, the Company had a Management Services Agreement (“MSA”) with Great Western Operating Company, LLC
(“GWOC”), a wholly owned subsidiary of GWM Holdings, LLC, through which GWOC performed the daily operations of GWP. GWOC operated GWP
and costs were passed through to GWP as incurred. Pursuant to the MSA the Company indemnified GWOC for any losses, liabilities, and claims that were
not a result of gross negligence or willful misconduct. On July 17, 2020, GWP acquired GWOC and GWOC became a wholly owned subsidiary of GWP.
Please see Note 4—Acquisitions, Exchanges and Divestitures to our consolidated financial statements for more information.
The Company is organized as a limited liability company under the laws of the State of Delaware. As such, the members have limited liability
unless an act by the member is undertaken with deliberate intent to cause injury or with reckless disregard for the best interests of the Company.
NOTE 2—Basis of Presentation and Principles of Consolidation and Recapitalization Transaction
These consolidated financial statements include the accounts of GWP and its wholly owned subsidiaries. All significant intercompany transactions
have been eliminated.
These consolidated financial statements and related notes are stated in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America (“GAAP”). Preparation in accordance with GAAP requires the Company to (1) adopt accounting policies within accounting rules set by
the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) and (2) make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities,
revenues, expenses and other disclosed amounts. The Company assessed the carrying value of its long-lived assets with the information reasonably
available to it and the unknown future impacts of the coronavirus disease 2019 (COVID-19), volatile oil, natural gas and NGL prices and inflation as of
December 31, 2021 and 2020 and through the date of this report. As a result of these assessments the Company did not identify any impairment as of
December 31, 2021 and 2020. A future assessment of the magnitude and duration of COVID-19, as well as other factors, could result in material impacts to
the consolidated financial statements in future reporting periods. Note 3—Summary of Significant Accounting Policies describes the Company’s significant
accounting policies. The Company believes the major estimates and assumptions impacting its consolidated financial statements are as follows:
•

estimates of proved reserves of oil and natural gas, which affect the calculations of depletion, depreciation and amortization and impairment
of capitalized costs of oil and natural gas properties;

•

depreciation and depletion of property and equipment;

•

impairment of undeveloped properties and other assets;

•

estimates of asset retirement obligations;
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•

valuation of commodity derivative instruments;

•

valuation of Unit Appreciation Rights;

•

valuation of convertible preferred units and related embedded features;

•

assignment of fair value to assets acquired and liabilities assumed in connection with acquisitions that are considered business combinations
and allocating purchase price in connection with acquisitions that are considered asset acquisitions;

•

revenue and capital accruals; and

•

valuation of assets acquired and liabilities assumed as part of the Recapitalization Transaction.

Actual results may differ from estimates and assumptions of future events and these revisions could be significant. Future production may vary
significantly from estimated oil and natural gas proved reserves. Actual future prices may vary significantly from price assumptions. The Company
operates as a single reportable segment: the oil and natural gas exploration and production industry in the United States. All of the Company’s operations
are conducted in one geographic area of the United States. All revenues are derived from customers located in the United States.
The Recapitalization Transaction resulted in EIG controlling the majority of the voting power of GWP through its ability to appoint 3 of the 5
board members of GWP. EIG’s control of the majority of the voting power of GWP results in EIG being the acquirer of GWP. The following is a summary
of certain key aspects of the Recapitalization Transaction on February 22, 2021:
•

All of the Company’s outstanding preferred and common members’ equity interest, along with cash contributed by one of the common
unitholders, were exchanged for new authorized, issued and outstanding common units and common unit warrants. Please see Note 8—
Members’ Equity and Note—9 Preferred Units to the Company’s consolidated financial statements for more information.

•

The Company used the proceeds from the issuance of the 2025 Secured Notes along with cash on hand to redeem all outstanding principal on
the 2021 Notes. Please see Note 6—Debt to the Company’s consolidated financial statements for more information.

•

The Company exchanged all outstanding principal on the 2025 Notes for additional 2025 Secured Notes. Please see Note 6—Debt to the
Company’s consolidated financial statements for more information.

The exchange of outstanding preferred and common members’ equity interest, along with cash by one of the common unitholders for new
common units and common unit warrants noted above resulted in a change of control and is a business combination under ASC 805. The assets acquired
and liabilities assumed have been recorded as of the February 23, 2021 at fair value and are summarized as follows (in thousands):
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Consideration
Allocation of Purchase Price
Assets acquired1,2
Current assets
Oil and gas properties
Long-term assets
Total assets acquired

$

507,500

$

428,073
1,329,276
44,371
1,801,720

Liabilities Assumed
Current liabilities2
Long-term liabilities
Total liabilities assumed

(579,996)
(714,224)
(1,294,220)

Fair value of net assets acquired

$

507,500

_____________
1)

Within current assets is $13.5 million in cash received from one of the new common unitholders which was paid contemporaneously with the Recapitalization Transaction. This cash is
excluded from the Predecessor’s Statement of Cash Flows as it relates to funding of the Successor.

2)

The balances of current assets and current liabilities do not include the prepaid assets and current debt of $251.5 million related to the repayment of the 2021 Notes which occurred in March
2021. Please see Note 6—Debt to the Company’s consolidated financial statements and the Statement of Cash Flows in the consolidated financial statements for details.

To account for the transaction described above, the Company has elected to apply pushdown accounting. Accordingly, the Company has reflected
the new basis of accounting established by EIG through its application of ASC 805 to the individual assets and liabilities of the Company. The financial
statements of the Company have been presented as follows, which are not comparable due to push down accounting and therefore have been segregated
between a predecessor and successor period:
•

Consolidated Balance Sheet: The Balance Sheet as of December 31, 2021 is presented under the new basis (“Successor”) with a black line
separating the Balance Sheet as of December 31, 2020 which is presented under the old basis (“Predecessor”).

•

Consolidated Statement of Operations and Consolidated Statement of Cash flows: The period from February 23, 2021 through December 31, 2021
is presented under the new basis (“Successor”) with a black line separating the period from January 1, 2021 through February 22, 2021 and the
year ended December 31, 2020 which are presented under the old basis (“Predecessor”).

NOTE 3—Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include demand deposits and funds invested in highly liquid instruments with original maturities of three months or less
and typically exceed federally insured limits. The carrying value of cash and cash equivalents approximates fair value due to the short-term nature of these
instruments.
Accounts Receivable
As of December 31, 2021 and 2020 accounts receivable primarily consist of receivables from oil and natural gas purchasers and joint interest
owners. For receivables from joint interest owners, the Company typically has the ability to withhold future revenue disbursements to recover nonpayment
of joint interest billings. The Company routinely assesses the creditworthiness of its oil and natural gas purchasers and the recoverability of all material
trade and other receivables to determine their collectability. The Company routinely assesses the recoverability of all material trade and
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other receivables to determine their collectability. As of December 31, 2021 the Company’s allowance for uncollectible accounts was $0.9 million. As of
December 31, 2020, no allowance for uncollectible accounts was recorded.
Prepaid Expenses and Other Assets
The Company has prepaid expenses primarily related to well connections, various insurance premiums, dues and subscriptions that are paid at the
beginning of the term and extend past year end. The Company records well equipment inventory and materials included in other assets at the lower of cost
or net realizable value.
Oil and Natural Gas Producing Properties
Proved—The Company uses the successful efforts method of accounting for oil and natural gas properties. In accordance with this method, all
property acquisition costs and costs of exploratory wells are capitalized as incurred, pending the determination of proved reserves. If proved reserves are
not found, costs are expensed. Costs associated with developmental activities are capitalized as incurred regardless of proved reserves being found.
Unproved—Investments in unproved properties are not depleted until it is determined proved reserves exist. Unproved properties are assessed
periodically to ascertain whether impairment has occurred. Unproved properties are grouped for purposes of assessing impairment. Management considers
the primary lease terms of the properties, the holding period of the properties, success of holding leases through drilling, and geographic and geologic data
obtained relating to the properties while grouping properties to assess impairment. The amount of impairment is reported as a period expense within
exploration expense.
Wells in Progress—Wells in progress represent the costs associated with wells that have not been completed as of the balance sheet date. At the
time a well is completed and producing, the accumulated capitalized costs for the well is reclassified to proved property and included in the depletion
calculation.
Capitalized Interest—The Company capitalizes interest on expenditures made in connection with exploration and development projects that are in
progress. Interest is capitalized during the period that activities occur to bring the projects to their intended use.
Oil and natural gas properties, net, consist of the following (in thousands):
(Successor)
December 31,
2021

Proved oil and natural gas properties
Unproved oil and natural gas properties
Wells in progress
Total oil and natural gas properties
Less: accumulated depletion

$

Total oil and natural gas properties, net

$

1,447,256
17,469
120,010
1,584,735
(125,591)
1,459,144

(Predecessor)
December 31,
2020

$

$

2,584,641
48,071
95,891
2,728,603
(1,074,303)
1,654,300

In conjunction with pushdown accounting, oil and natural gas properties were measured at fair value as of the Acquisition Date. Please see Note 2
— Basis of Presentation and Principles of Consolidation and Recapitalization Transaction to the Company’s consolidated financial statements.
Costs of oil and natural gas properties include capitalized interest of $6.4 million and $7.0 million for the period the period February 23, 2021
through December 31, 2021 (Successor) and for the year ended December 31, 2020 (Predecessor). There was no capitalized interest recorded for the period
January 1, 2021 through February 22, 2021 (Predecessor).
Property acquisition and development costs are depleted using the units of production method on a field basis aggregated by common geological
structure or stratigraphic condition. Costs to carry, retain, maintain and repair properties are expensed as incurred, and new leases and improvements are
capitalized as property and equipment.
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The Company evaluates its long-lived assets, to be held and used, including proved oil and natural gas properties, by field on an annual basis or
when events or circumstances indicate that the carrying value of those assets may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is indicated if the sum of the
expected future cash flows is less than the carrying amount of the assets. If an impairment loss is indicated, the Company recognizes the impairment loss
for the amount that the carrying amount of the asset exceeds its estimated fair value. The Company did not recognize any impairment expense for proved
properties for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020. Unproved properties were amortized and impaired using the individually insignificant lease
basis and charged to exploration expense in the amount of $0.7 million, $3.7 million and $6.3 million for the period January 1, 2021 through February 22,
2021 (Predecessor), the period February 23, 2021 through December 31, 2021 (Successor) and for the year ended December 31, 2020, respectively
(Predecessor).
Oil and Natural Gas Reserves
The estimates of proved oil and natural gas reserves utilized in the preparation of the consolidated financial statements are estimated in accordance
with the rules established by the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”) and the FASB. These rules require that reserve estimates be prepared under
existing economic and operating conditions using a first of the month average price for the most recent twelve months ended with no provision for price
and cost escalations in future years except by contractual arrangements. The Company’s oil and natural gas reserves as of December 31, 2021 were
prepared by the Company and audited by an independent reserve engineer, Ryder Scott, L.P.
Reserve estimates are inherently imprecise. Accordingly, the estimates are expected to change as more current information becomes available. Oil
and natural gas properties are depleted by field using the units of production method. Capitalized drilling and development costs of producing oil and
natural gas properties are depleted over proved developed reserves and leasehold costs are depleted over total proved reserves. It is possible that, because of
changes in market conditions or the inherent imprecision of reserve estimates, the estimates of future cash inflows, future gross revenues, the amount of oil
and natural gas reserves, the remaining estimated lives of oil and natural gas properties, or any combination of the above may be increased or decreased.
Increases in recoverable economic volumes generally reduce per unit depletion rates while decreases in recoverable economic volumes generally increase
per unit depletion rates.
Other Property and Equipment
Other property and equipment includes land, which is not depreciated, furniture and fixtures, leasehold improvements, computer hardware and
software and gathering lines which are depreciated on the straight-line depreciation method, based upon estimated useful lives of the assets, which range
from three to ten years.
Restricted Cash
The Company entered into a firm sales agreement that requires the Company to deliver minimum quantities of oil. If the Company is unable to
fulfill all contractual obligations, the Company may be required to pay penalties or damages pursuant to the agreement. The Company was required to open
a letter of credit with cash designated as collateral for any penalties associated with minimum quantities of oil not delivered. The cash designated to fund
the letter of credit is considered restricted cash.
Debt Issuance Costs
Unamortized debt issuance costs related to the revolving credit facility as of December 31, 2021 and 2020 were $3.4 million and $4.0 million and
are included in other assets. The Company amortized the debt issuance costs related to the revolving credit facility using the straight-line method and had
$0.2 million, $1.1 million and $1.1 million amortized to interest expense for the period January 1, 2021 through February 22, 2021 (Predecessor), the
period February 23, 2021 through December 31, 2021 (Successor) and for the year ended December 31, 2020 (Predecessor), respectively. Unamortized
debt issuance costs related to the 2025 Secured Notes as of December 31, 2021 were $11.0 million. Debt issuance costs on the 2025 Secured Notes are
presented net against outstanding debt on the December 31, 2021 consolidated balance sheets – see Note 6—Debt. The Company amortized the debt
issuance costs related to the 2025 Secured, 2021 and 2025 Notes using the effective interest method of amortization and had $0.5 million, $1.9 million and
$3.1 million of amortization in interest expense for the period January 1, 2021 through February 22, 2021 (Predecessor),
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the period February 23, 2021 through December 31, 2021 (Successor) and for the year ended December 31, 2020 (Predecessor), respectively.
Deferred Salaries
Certain employees of the Company, upon hire, had the option of deferring payment of a portion of their salaries which is held at an affiliate. The
Company has recorded $3.6 million and $4.1 million as of December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively, which is included in non-current other liabilities.
Investment in Unconsolidated Entity
On April 4, 2019, GWPM entered into an agreement with a midstream company, which is a limited liability company, where GWPM contributed
cash equal to a 10% equity interest in that company. The company was formed to design, construct and operate a gas gathering and compression system,
gas processing plant and other midstream facilities. The natural gas processing plant and gathering system started full operations on September 16, 2019.
GWP’s investment in the unconsolidated entity is accounted for using the equity method in which investments are initially recognized at cost and
subsequently adjusted for GWP’s proportionate share of earnings, losses and distributions. The carrying value of GWP’s investment as of December 31,
2021 was $18.9 million which was made up of the following activity during the period January 1, 2021 through February 22, 2021 (Predecessor), the
period February 23, 2021 through December 31, 2021 (Successor) (in thousands):
Predecessor investment in unconsolidated entity, December 31, 2020
GWP's proportionate share of the unconsolidated entity's net income
Predecessor investment in unconsolidated entity, February 22, 2021

$

Successor investment in unconsolidated entity, February 23, 2021
GWP's proportionate share of the unconsolidated entity's net loss

$

Successor investment in unconsolidated entity, December 31, 2021

$

$

19,031
23
19,054

19,054
(148)
18,906

Other Than Temporary Impairment
On a continuous basis, management assesses whether there are any indicators, including the underlying investment’s operating performance and
general market conditions, that the value of the Company’s investments in unconsolidated entity may be impaired. An investment’s value is impaired only
if management’s estimate of the fair value of the investment is less than the carrying value of the investment and such difference is deemed to be otherthan-temporary. To the extent impairment has occurred, the loss shall be measured as the excess of the carrying amount of the investment over the
estimated fair value of the investment. The Company did not recognize any impairment expense for the investment in unconsolidated entity for the period
January 1, 2021 through February 22, 2021 (Predecessor), the period February 23, 2021 through December 31, 2021 (Successor) and for the year ended
December 31, 2020 (Predecessor).
Fair Value Measures
Fair value represents the price that would be received to sell the asset or paid to transfer the liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the reporting date. Assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value at each reporting date are classified according to a hierarchy that
prioritizes inputs and assumptions underlying the valuation techniques. This fair value hierarchy gives the highest priority to quoted prices in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities and the lowest priority to unobservable inputs, and consists of three levels:
•

Level 1—Measurements are obtained using unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical, unrestricted assets or liabilities that the
reporting entity has the ability to access at the measurement date.
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•

Level 2—Measurements use inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset and liability or can be
corroborated with observable market data for substantially the entire contractual term of the asset or liability.

•

Level 3—Measurements are based on one or more unobservable inputs that are significant in establishing a fair value estimate. These
unobservable inputs are developed based on the best information available and may include the Company’s internal data.

In determining fair value, the Company uses observable market data when available, or models that incorporate observable market data. In
addition to market information, the Company incorporates transaction-specific details that, in management’s judgment, market participants would take into
account when measuring fair value. Reclassifications and transfers of fair value between Level 1, Level 2, and Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy, if
applicable, are made at the end of each quarter.
Accrued Liabilities
Accrued liabilities include the following as of December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively (in thousands).
`

(Successor)
December 31,
2021

Accrued capital and operating expenses
Revenue payable
Accrued compensation expense
Interest payable
Dividends payable
Derivative payable
Other accrued expenses

$

Total accrued liabilities

$

54,776
130,071
5,473
13,147
—
13,463
—
216,930

(Predecessor)
December 31,
2020

$

$

40,269
74,924
10,415
7,463
3,137
—
676
136,884

Production Taxes Payable
Production taxes payable primarily consists of ad valorem taxes payable. Ad valorem taxes are paid two years in arrears in the state of Colorado.
Ad valorem taxes are based on revenues from the production of oil, natural gas and natural gas liquids (“NGLs”). The current portion of ad valorem taxes
accrued as of December 31, 2021 will be paid to the counties in which the Company produces oil, natural gas and NGLs in April of 2022. The current
portion of ad valorem taxes accrued as of December 31, 2020 were paid in February and June of 2021.
Asset Retirement Obligations
Asset retirement obligations (“ARO”) represent the future abandonment costs of tangible assets, namely the plugging and abandonment of wells
and remediation of the land. The fair value of a liability for an asset’s retirement obligation is recorded in the period in which it is incurred if a reasonable
estimate of the cost to plug and abandon and remediate can be made. The corresponding asset retirement cost is capitalized with the related long-lived
asset. The liability is accreted to its present value each period.
Inherent to the present value calculation are numerous estimates, assumptions and judgments, including, but not limited to: the total cost of
remediation, inflation factors, the Company’s credit adjusted risk free rate, timing of settlement and changes in the legal, regulatory, environmental and
political environments. Revisions to these estimates may impact the ARO. The Company makes corresponding adjustments to both the ARO and the
related oil and natural gas property asset balance for these revisions. These revisions result in prospective changes to depreciation, depletion and
amortization expense and the associated accretion of the discounted abandonment liability (“DD&A”).
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On February 22, 2021, ARO was remeasured as part of the pushdown accounting adjustments. Please see Note 2— Basis of Presentation and
Principles of Consolidation and Recapitalization Transaction to our consolidated financial statements for more information.
The following table summarizes the activities for the Company’s ARO (in thousands):
Predecessor asset retirement obligations, December 31, 2019
Liabilities incurred and acquired
Liabilities settled
Accretion expense
Revisions in estimated liabilities
Predecessor asset retirement obligations, December 31, 2020
Liabilities settled
Accretion expense
Predecessor asset retirement obligations, February 22, 2021

$

Successor liability acquired, February 23, 2021
Liabilities incurred and acquired
Liabilities settled
Accretion expense
Revisions in estimated liabilities
Successor asset retirement obligations, December 31, 2021
Current portion of asset retirement obligations
Long term portion of asset retirement obligations

$

Successor asset retirement obligations, December 31, 2021

$

$

$

20,699
162
(8,402)
1,477
2,745
16,681
(750)
261
16,192

14,076
278
(5,768)
1,168
2,292
12,046
7,297
4,749
12,046

The fair value of ARO is measured using Level 3 inputs in the fair value hierarchy.
Energy Group Long-Term Incentive Plan
The Energy Group Long Term Incentive Plan (“LTIP”) was established for the benefit of certain employees. The LTIP includes a profit-sharing
award (“PSA”). The PSA was terminated effective November 18, 2019. The remaining PSA liability of $1.6 million was paid in December 2020 and $1.7
million was paid in October 2021.
The LTIP awards were accounted for in accordance with Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC”) 718, Compensation—Stock Compensation
(“ASC 718”). As of January 1, 2015, the PSA was frozen and replaced with the Unit Appreciation Rights Plan, as described below.
Profits Participation Plan and Deferred Compensation Arrangement
The Profits Participation Plan (the “PPP”) became effective on January 1, 2015 for the benefit of certain employees based on the performance of
the Company, though no awards were granted under that plan until 2016. For periods prior to 2016, the Company established a deferred compensation
arrangement (the “Deferred Comp Arrangement”) based on the employee’s length of service.
The PPP includes a Target Deferred Bonus (the “TDB”) and a sale bonus. The TDB provides employees the opportunity to participate in
additional cash bonuses based on individual employee performance and Company performance. The Sale Bonus allows certain employees to participate in
up to 10% of Net Sales Proceeds, at the discretion of the managers as defined by the PPP, triggered by certain monetization events. The TDB and Sale
Bonus vest one-third on the first June 30 following the date of grant and one-third as of the last day of the following two fiscal years. Upon a change in
control, as defined in the PPP, the TDB and sale bonus fully vest. The Recapitalization
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Transaction on February 22, 2021 caused a change in control, as defined in the PPP, and therefore the TDB became fully vested. Final payment of the TDB
in the amount of $1.4 million was made on May 15, 2021. There was no sale bonus established as part of the change in control.
The PPP awards and Deferred Comp Arrangement were accounted for in accordance with ASC Topic 710, Compensation. The awards were
vested over three years and were expensed using a graded method. The deferred compensation liability associated with the PPP and the Deferred Comp
Arrangement was approximately $1.4 million as of December 31, 2020.
Unit Appreciation Rights Plan
The Unit Appreciation Rights Plan (the “UAR Plan”) was established by the Company effective January 1, 2015, to provide long-term incentives
to key members of management. The Recapitalization Transaction on February 22, 2021 caused a change in control, as defined in the UAR Plan, and
therefore all unvested Class B Units granted as part of the UAR Plan became fully vested and redeemable. Final payment of all redeemed Class B Units in
the amount of $2.9 million was made in June 2021.
Derivative Instruments
The Company uses derivative financial instruments to reduce exposure to fluctuations in commodity prices and interest rates. These transactions
are in the form of swaps, purchased puts, and collars.
The Company does not require collateral or other security from counterparties to support derivative instruments; however, to minimize the credit
risk associated with derivative instruments, it is the Company’s policy to enter into derivative contracts only with counterparties that are credit-worthy
financial institutions deemed by management as competent and competitive market-makers. The Company also utilizes master netting agreements to
minimize credit-risk exposure.
The Company reports the fair value of all derivative instruments on the consolidated balance sheets. The commodity and interest rate derivative
instruments are not designated as hedges for accounting purposes for the periods presented. Accordingly, the changes in fair value are recognized in the
consolidated statements of operations in the period of change.
Financial Instruments
The Company’s financial instruments that are exposed to concentrations of credit risk consist primarily of cash and cash equivalents, derivative
instruments, and accounts receivable. The Company’s cash and cash equivalents and derivative instruments are with major financial institutions. The
Company attempts to minimize credit risk exposure from purchasers of the Company’s oil and natural gas through formal credit policies and monitoring
procedures. A portion of the Company’s derivative contracts currently in place are with lenders under its revolving credit facility that have investment
grade ratings.
Revenue Recognition
The Company recognizes revenue in accordance with FASB ASC Topic 606 – Revenue from Contracts with Customers (“ASC 606”). Revenue is
recognized at the point in time at which the Company’s performance obligations under its commodity sales contracts are satisfied and control of the
commodity is transferred to the customer. The Company has determined that its contracts for the sale of crude oil, unprocessed natural gas, residue gas and
NGLs contain monthly performance obligations to deliver product at locations specified in the contract. Control is transferred at the delivery location, at
which point the performance obligation has been satisfied and revenue is recognized. Fees included in the contract that are incurred prior to control transfer
are classified as gathering and transportation expense, and fees incurred after control transfers are included as a reduction to the transaction price. The table
below presents the disaggregation of revenue by product type for the period from January 1, 2021 through February 22, 2021 (Predecessor), for the period
from February 23, 2021 through December 31, 2021 (Successor), and for the year ended December 31,2020 (Predecessor) (in thousands):
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(Successor)
Period from
February 23, 2021
through December
31, 2021

REVENUE:
Oil revenue
NGL and natural gas revenue

$
$

Oil, NGL and natural gas revenue

424,260
185,711
609,971

(Predecessor)

(Predecessor)

Period from January
1, 2021, through
February 22, 2021

Year Ended
December 31, 2020

$
$

53,138
43,521
96,659

$
$

313,373
28,950
342,323

The Company records sales revenue based on an estimate of the volumes delivered at estimated prices as determined by the applicable sales
agreement, which is variable based on commodity pricing. The Company estimates its sales volumes based on company-measured volume readings. Oil,
natural gas and NGL sales are adjusted in subsequent periods based on data received from the Company’s purchasers that reflects actual volumes and prices
received which is typically within two months of transfer of control to the purchaser. Historically, the difference between estimated and actual sales
revenues has not been material. For the period January 1, 2021 through February 22, 2021 (Predecessor), the period February 23, 2021 through December
31, 2021 (Successor), and for the year ended December 31, 2020 (Predecessor), the impact of any natural gas imbalances was not significant.
From time to time the Company may enter into short term marketing contracts where the Company purchases and re-sells oil and natural gas to
meet its marketing commitments. The Company acts as an agent in these transactions as the oil and natural gas is not controlled by the Company and
therefore the associated purchase and sale are presented net on the consolidated statements of operations. Historically, the difference between purchases and
sales have not been material.
Comprehensive Income (Loss)
The Company has no elements of comprehensive income (loss) other than net income (loss).
Income Taxes
The Company is organized as a limited liability company and is accounted for as a pass-through entity for U.S. federal income tax purposes. As a
result, the net taxable income of the Company and any related tax credits are passed through to the members and are included in their tax returns even
though such net taxable income or tax credits may not have actually been distributed. Accordingly, no U.S. federal tax provision has been recorded in the
financial statements of the Company. The U.S. Tax Cuts and Jobs Act passed in December 2017 has not had an impact on the Company as it is a passthrough entity.
Reclassifications
Certain prior period balances have been reclassified to conform to the current year presentation. Such reclassifications had no effect on the
Company’s operating income, net income, cash flows or members’ equity previously reported.
NOTE 4—Acquisitions, Exchanges and Divestitures
In July 2020, the Company acquired GWOC for aggregate consideration of $5,000 in cash. The acquisition provides for the consolidation of
GWOC for better visibility into the assets and liabilities recorded at GWOC. The acquired assets from GWOC did not contribute any revenue or net income
to the Company for the year ended December 31, 2020 as GWOC operated the assets of the Company and costs were passed through to the Company as
incurred at no markup.
The acquisition is accounted for using the acquisition method in accordance with ASC Topic 805, Business Combinations (“ASC 805”), which
requires the assets acquired and liabilities assumed to be recorded at fair value as of the acquisition date of July 17, 2020. The fair value of assets acquired
and liabilities assumed is the balance sheet of GWOC on July 17, 2020 as no intangible assets were acquired as part of the acquisition.
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The following table summarizes the purchase price of assets acquired and liabilities assumed (in thousands):
Purchase Price (in thousands)
Consideration
Cash

July 17, 2020

Total consideration
Allocation of Purchase Price
Assets acquired
Accounts receivable
Prepaid and other assets
Other property and equipment, net
Non-current restricted cash
Intercompany receivable (current and non-current)
Total acquired assets
Liabilities assumed
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Production tax payable (current and non-current)
Line fill liability (current and non-current)
Non-current debt, net
Other liabilities
Total assumed liabilities

$
$

5
5

$

57,681
21,111
3,738
6,060
173,346
261,936

$
$

$
$

Fair value of net assets acquired

(147,551)
(101,643)
(3,802)
(3,269)
(5,666)
(261,931)
5

For the period January 1, 2021 through February 22, 2021 (Predecessor) and the period February 23, 2021 through December 31, 2021
(Successor) the Company spent $0.2 million and $3.0 million on leasing and did not close any other acquisitions. For the year ended December 31, 2020
(Predecessor), the Company spent $4.6 million on leasing and closed $0.8 million of various other acquisitions.
NOTE 5—Derivative Instruments
The Company uses financial derivative instruments as part of its price and interest rate risk management program to achieve a more predictable,
economic cash flow from its oil and natural gas production and limiting exposure to interest rate changes by reducing its exposure to commodity price and
interest rate fluctuations. Historically, the Company has entered into financial swaps, purchased puts and collars.
Each swap contract has an established contractually set fixed price (the “Fixed Price”). When the settlement price of the commodity is above the
Fixed Price, the Company pays its counterparty an amount equal to the difference between the settlement price of the commodity and the Fixed Price
multiplied by the contract volume. When the settlement price of the commodity is below the Fixed Price, the counterparty pays the Company an amount
equal to the difference between the settlement price of the commodity and the Fixed Price multiplied by the contract volume.
Basis swaps are designed to establish a fixed price differential between pricing at two different locations. The Price the Company receives for
natural gas production generally varies from the NYMEX Henry Hub price used in swap and collar contracts, due to adjustments for delivery location and
other factors.
The purchased put establishes the minimum price that the Company will receive for the contracted volumes unless the market price for the
commodity falls below the sold put strike price, at which point the minimum price equals the reference price plus the excess of the purchased put strike
price over the sold put strike price.
Each collar transaction has an established price floor and ceiling. When the settlement price is below the price floor established by these collars,
the Company receives an amount from its counterparty equal to the difference between

F-15

the commodity settlement price and the price floor multiplied by the contract volume. When the settlement price is above the price ceiling established by
these collars, the Company pays its counterparty an amount equal to the difference between the settlement price and the price ceiling multiplied by the
commodity derivative contract volume.
Interest-rate swaps are used to fix interest rates on existing or anticipated indebtedness. The purpose of these instruments is to manage the Company’s
existing or anticipated exposure to interest-rate changes. The fair value of the Company’s current interest-rate swap portfolio is subject to changes in
interest rates.
Below is a summary of the Company’s open commodity derivative instrument positions as of December 31, 2021, by product and strategy:
Location1

Crude Swaps:
Notional volume (Bbl)
Weighted average price ($/Bbl)
Crude Collars:
Notional volume (Bbl)
Weighted average floor price ($/Bbl)
Weighted average ceiling price ($/Bbl)
Natural Gas Swaps:
Notional volume (MMbtu)
Weighted average price ($/MMbtu)
Natural Gas Basis Swaps:
Notional volume (MMbtu)
Weighted average price ($/MMbtu)
Natural Gas Collars:
Notional volume (MMbtu)
Weighted average floor price ($/MMbtu)
Weighted average ceiling price ($/MMbtu)

2022

NYMEX
$

4,715,018
53.81

$

150,000
62.50

$
$

—
—
—

$
$

—
—
—

$

16,400,003
3.08

$

7,083,333
3.24

$

9,000,012
(0.27)

$

3,180,000
(0.35)

$
$

1,349,996
2.80
3.39

$
$

1,266,667
3.11
4.00

NYMEX

NYMEX

NYMEX &
ROCKIES

2023

NYMEX

_____________
1)

NYMEX refers to quoted prices on the New York Mercantile Exchange and ROCKIES refers to quoted CIG natural gas prices.

Below is a summary of the Company’s open interest rate swaps as of December 31, 2021 (in thousands except percentages):
Notional Principal Amount
$
$
$
$
$
$
$

75,000
25,000
25,000
25,000
25,000
25,000
25,000

Maturity Date
June 25, 2024
June 25, 2024
June 25, 2024
June 25, 2024
June 25, 2024
June 25, 2024
June 25, 2024

Interest Rate
0.46 %
0.45 %
0.36 %
0.36 %
0.22 %
0.22 %
0.23 %

Balance sheet presentation
Derivative instruments are reported at fair value on the consolidated balance sheets as derivative instruments under current assets, non-current
assets, current liabilities and non-current liabilities. The Company nets the fair value of derivative instruments by counterparty in the accompanying
consolidated balance sheets where the financial right to
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offset exists. The following table presents the fair value of the derivative instruments on a net basis as of December 31, 2021 and 2020 (in thousands):
Asset Derivatives
(Successor)
December 31,
2021

Commodity derivatives not designated as hedging instruments
Interest rate derivatives not designated as hedging instruments

$

Total derivatives not designated as hedging instruments

$

—
3,328
3,328

Liability Derivatives

(Predecessor)
December 31,
2020

$

(Successor)
December 31,
2021

22,776
—
22,776

$

$
$

(Predecessor)
December 31,
2020

106,931
—
106,931

$

4,297
674
4,971

$

Gains and losses
Gains or losses resulting from changes in the fair values of the Company’s derivatives along with the gains or losses resulting from settlement of
derivatives are all included in gain (loss) on derivative instruments, net in the consolidated statements of operations.
The following table presents gain (loss) on derivative instruments for the periods presented (in thousands):
(Successor)
Period from
February 23, 2021
through December
31, 2021

Realized (loss) gain on derivative instruments
Unrealized (loss) gain on derivative instruments

$

(Loss) gain on derivative instruments, net

$

(157,092)
(25,038)
(182,130)

(Predecessor)

(Predecessor)

Period from January
1, 2021, through
February 22, 2021

Year Ended
December 31, 2020

$
$

(3,157)
(96,370)
(99,527)

$
$

186,604
42,262
228,866

The following table presents gross commodity derivative balances prior to applying netting adjustments and net balances as recorded in the
consolidated balance sheets (in thousands):

Gross Amounts

December 31, 2021 (Successor)
Current commodity derivative assets
Non-current commodity derivative assets
Current commodity derivative liabilities
Non-current commodity derivative liabilities
December 31, 2020 (Predecessor)
Current commodity derivative assets
Non-current commodity derivative assets
Current commodity derivative liabilities
Non-current commodity derivative liabilities

$
$
$
$

172
523
103,668
3,958

$
$
$
$

24,326
143
3,996
1,994

Net Amounts
Presented in the
Balance Sheet2

Netting Adjustments1

$
$
$
$

(172)
(523)
(173)
(522)

$
$
$
$

—
—
103,495
3,436

(1,550)
(143)
(1,550)
(143)

$
$
$
$

22,776
—
2,446
1,851

_____________
1)

With all of the Company’s financial trading counterparties, there are agreements in place that allow for the financial right of offset for commodity derivative assets and commodity
derivative liabilities at settlement or in the event of a default under the agreements.

2)

There are no amounts of related financial collateral received or pledged.
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The following table presents gross interest rate derivative balances prior to applying netting adjustments and net balances as recorded in the
consolidated balance sheets (in thousands):

Gross Amounts

December 31, 2021 (Successor)
Current interest rate derivative assets
Non-current interest rate derivative assets
Current interest rate derivative liabilities
Non-current interest rate derivative liabilities
December 31, 2020 (Predecessor)
Current interest rate derivative assets
Non-current interest rate derivative assets
Current interest rate derivative liabilities
Non-current interest rate derivative liabilities

$
$
$
$

404
3,102
178
—

$
$
$
$

—
92
425
341

Net Amounts
Presented in the
Balance Sheet2

1

Netting Adjustments

$
$
$
$

(178)
—
(178)
—

$
$
$
$

226
3,102
—
—

—
(92)
—
(92)

$
$
$
$

—
—
425
249

_____________
1)

With all of the Company’s financial trading counterparties, there are agreements in place that allow for the financial right of offset for interest rate derivative assets and interest rate
derivative liabilities at settlement or in the event of a default under the agreements.

2)

There are no amounts of related financial collateral received or pledged.

Netting for balance sheet presentation is performed by current and non-current classification. The Company does have amounts subject to
enforceable master netting arrangements that are not netted on the consolidated balance sheets. As of December 31, 2021, amounts for counterparties in a
net asset position totaled $3.3 million and a net liability position totaled $106.9 million. As of December 31, 2020, amounts for counterparties in a net asset
position totaled $22.1 million and a net liability position of $3.6 million.
NOTE 6—Debt
On June 25, 2019, the Company entered into a Third Amended and Restated Credit Agreement with MUFG Union Bank, N.A. (formerly known
as Union Bank, N.A.), as administrative agent (“Administrative Agent”), and the lenders party thereto (“Lenders”) with respect to the Company’s revolving
credit facility in the maximum aggregate principal amount of $1.5 billion, with a sublimit for letters of credit issued thereunder of $20.0 million and no
swing line loans. The initial borrowing base on the revolving credit facility was $650 million; however, to reduce associated fees, the Company elected to a
commitment amount of $550 million. On August 23, 2019, the Company entered into Amendment No. 1 to the Third Amended and Restated Credit
Agreement, which allows the Company to purchase in cash up to an aggregate amount of $50.0 million of the 2021 Notes and/or 2025 Notes. For the year
ended December 31, 2020 the Company purchased $46.0 million of 2021 Notes for $30.1 million recording a gain of $15.9 million. As of December 31,
2020, the Company has purchased a total of $31.8 million and can purchase an additional $18.2 million in senior notes. On November 15, 2019 the
Company entered into Amendment No. 2 to the Third Amended and Restated Credit Agreement that increased the borrowing base from $650 million to
$700 million. However, to reduce associated fees, the Company elected a commitment amount of $630 million. On April 8, 2020 the Company entered into
Amendment No. 3 to the Third Amended and Restated Credit Agreement that, among other things, decreased the borrowing base from $700 million to
$600 million. On July 13, 2020, the Company entered into Amendment No. 4 to the Third Amended and Restated Credit Agreement that allows the
Company to incur second-lien, third-lien and unsecured debt in an aggregate principal amount of up to $375 million and, subject to the aggregate maximum
amount of $375 million and up to $175 million of new third lien notes the Company may issue to Preferred Investors in exchange of Preferred Units. On
September 29, 2020, the Company entered into Amendment No. 5 to the Third Amended and Restated Credit Agreement that, among other things,
decreased the borrowing base from $600 million to $485 million.
The revolving credit facility is secured by liens and security interests on substantially all of the Company’s properties and the properties of its
subsidiaries. The credit facility contains restrictive covenants that may limit the Company’s ability to (i) grant liens, (ii) incur additional debt, (iii) enter into
mergers, (iv) sell assets, (v) make
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distributions and redemptions, (vi) make certain acquisitions and investments, (vii) enter into transactions with affiliates, (viii) hedge future production, and
(ix) engage in certain other prohibited transactions without the prior consent of the lender.
The amount available to be borrowed on the Company’s revolving credit facility is subject to a borrowing base that is required to be redetermined
semi-annually and will be based on proved reserves reflected in the midyear and year end reserve reports as being attributable to the oil and natural gas
properties, the financial condition and projected financial condition of the Company, and other information deemed relevant by the Administrative Agent.
Additionally, at the request of (i) the Lenders or the Administrative Agent or (ii) the Company, the borrowing base may be redetermined, in each case one
additional time during any period between two scheduled redeterminations. As of December 31, 2021, the borrowing base under the revolving credit
facility was $485.0 million and there were $242.0 million of outstanding borrowings thereunder. As of December 31, 2020, the borrowing base under the
revolving credit facility was $485.0 million and there were $339.0 million of outstanding borrowings thereunder.
Outstanding principal amounts borrowed (and accrued but unpaid interest thereon) are required to be repaid in full on the maturity date (or earlier,
upon any acceleration of such obligations pursuant to the terms of the revolving credit facility), and interest will be payable quarterly for reference rate
loans and at the end of the applicable interest period for Eurodollar loans, or, if the applicable interest period is greater than six months, on the three month
anniversary of the first day of such interest period. The Company has a choice of borrowing at an adjusted Eurodollar rate or an adjusted reference rate.
Eurodollar loans bear interest at a rate per annum equal to an adjusted LIBOR rate (equal to a fraction (expressed as a decimal), the numerator of which is
the applicable LIBOR rate and the denominator of which is the number one minus the reserve percentages (expressed as a decimal) on such date at which
the Administrative Agent is required to maintain reserves according to the regulations of the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System) plus an
applicable margin ranging from 150 to 250 basis points, depending on the percentage of the borrowing base utilized. Reference rate loans bear interest at a
rate per annum equal to the greatest of (i) the Administrative Agent’s reference rate, (ii) the federal funds effective rate plus 50 basis points and (iii) the
one-month LIBOR rate plus 100 basis points, plus an applicable margin ranging from 50 to 150 basis points, depending on the percentage of the borrowing
base utilized. The Company may prepay any amounts borrowed prior to the maturity date without any premium or penalty other than the prepayment of
accrued interest and customary Eurodollar breakage costs.
The revolving credit facility requires the Company to maintain, on a consolidated basis with its subsidiaries, the following financial ratios:
•

a current ratio, which is the ratio of: (i) the Company’s consolidated current assets (including the aggregate unused commitments
under the revolving credit facility and joint interest billing suspense through March 30, 2021, but excluding restricted
cash and certain derivative assets) to (ii) the Company’s consolidated current liabilities (excluding the current portion of long-term
obligations under the revolving credit facility, certain derivative assets and the 2021 Notes through March 30, 2021), of not less
than 1.0 to 1.0 as of the last day of each fiscal quarter; and

•

a maximum leverage ratio, which is the ratio of (i) the Company’s consolidated total debt (excluding certain debt attributed to
hedging arrangements and obligations under the 2018 Preferred Units as long as they are not classified as debt) to (ii) the
Company’s consolidated EBITDAX for the four fiscal quarter period most recently ended, not to exceed 3.5 to 1.0 as of the last day
of each fiscal quarter.

The revolving credit facility also contains customary events of default, including, without limitation, the failure to make payments, cross-default to
other material indebtedness, certain events related to bankruptcy or insolvency proceedings, and failure to comply with specified covenants. Upon an event
of default, the lender commitments under the revolving credit facility may be terminated and indebtedness thereunder declared immediately due and
payable.
On February 22, 2021, the Company completed a private offering of $235.0 million in aggregate principal amount of 12.0% senior secured notes
(the “2025 Secured Notes”) which resulted in net proceeds of approximately $222.7 million net of the initial purchasers discount of 2.5% of the aggregate
principal and offering expenses. The 2025 Secured Notes mature on September 1, 2025. Interest on the 2025 Secured Notes is payable on March 1 and
September 1 of each year with the first interest payment made on September 1, 2021. The net proceeds from the issuance of the 2025
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Secured Notes along with cash on hand of $36.8 million were deposited in an irrevocable trust on February 22, 2021 until March 3, 2021 when certain
requirements in 2025 Secured Note agreement were satisfied. On March 3, 2021, the funds deposited in the irrevocable trust were used to fund the
redemption of all remaining outstanding principal of $251.5 million on the $300.0 million aggregate principal amount 9.0% senior notes due in 2021 issued
on September 22, 2016 (“2021 Notes”). Further, in connection with the closing of the 2025 Secured Notes, on February 22, 2021 the Company exchanged
all outstanding principal of $75.0 million on the $75.0 million aggregate principal amount 8.5% senior notes due in 2025 issued on April 11, 2018 (“2025
Notes”) for additional 2025 Secured Notes of $76.875 million. The $1.875 million difference between the $76.875 million exchange price on the additional
2025 Secured Notes and exchanged for the $75.0 million carrying value of the 2025 Notes was recorded to equity as part of the push down accounting
adjustments as this is not a transaction of the Predecessor and represents part of the initial basis of the Successor. The redemption of the 2021 Notes and
exchange of the 2025 Notes were accounted for as a debt extinguishment and therefore unamortized debt issuance costs of $1.4 million and $2.9 million on
the 2021 Notes and 2025 Notes were adjusted to zero as part of the push down accounting adjustments. Please see Note 2—Basis of Presentation and
Principles of Consolidation and Recapitalization Transaction to our consolidated financial statements for more information.
The Company is entitled to redeem up to 35% of the aggregate principal amount of the 2025 Secured Notes prior to March 1, 2023 with an
amount of cash not greater than the net proceeds that the Company could raise in certain equity offerings at a redemption price equal to 112.0% of the
principal amount of the 2025 Secured Notes being redeemed plus accrued and unpaid interest. The Company is also entitled to redeem all or a part of the
2025 Secured Notes prior to March 1, 2023 at a redemption price equal to 100.000% of the principal amount thereof, plus accrued and unpaid interest plus
the greater of (i) 1% of the principal amount of the 2025 Secured Notes or (ii) the present value of 106.0% of the principal amount of the 2025 Secured
Notes plus all required interest payments through March 23, 2023 (excluding accrued but unpaid interest through the redemption date) using a discount rate
on the redemption date equal to the treasury rate plus 50 basis points discounted to the redemption date on a semi-annual basis divided by the principal
amount of the 2025 Secured Notes. If the 2025 Secured Notes are redeemed on or after March 23, 2023, the Company may redeem some or all of the 2025
Secured Notes at a price equal to 106.0% of the principal amount if redeemed between March 1, 2023 and March 1, 2024, 103.0% of the principal amount
if redeemed between March 1, 2024 and March 1, 2025 and 100.00% of the principal amount if redeemed between April 2025 and thereafter, plus accrued
and unpaid interest. If the Company experiences a change of control, as defined in the note agreement in respect of the 2025 Secured Notes, the Company
will be required to offer to holders of the 2025 Secured Notes to repurchase their notes at 101.0% of the principal amount thereof, plus accrued and unpaid
interest, if any, to the date of purchase.
As of December 31, 2021 and 2020, the Company had $311.9 million and $326.5 million, respectively, in principal outstanding on the senior notes
with unamortized discount and debt issuance costs of $11.0 million and $4.8 million, respectively, and accrued interest of $12.5 million and $7.0 million,
respectively.
The Company incurred interest on long-term debt of $5.9 million, $41.9 million and $44.2 million for the period January 1, 2021 through
February 22, 2021 (Predecessor), the period February 23, 2021 through December 31, 2021 (Successor) and for the year ended December 31, 2020
(Predecessor), respectively, and capitalized interest of $6.4 million and $7.0 million for the period the period February 23, 2021 through December 31,
2021 (Successor) and for the year ended December 31, 2020 (Predecessor). There was no capitalized interest recorded for the period January 1, 2021
through February 22, 2021 (Predecessor).
As of December 31, 2021 and 2020, the Company was in compliance with all debt covenants.
Paycheck Protection Program Loan
On April 14, 2020, the Company entered into a loan agreement with PNC Bank N.A. as the lender of the Paycheck Protection Program of the
Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security Act (“CARES Act”) administered by U.S. Small Business Administration (“SBA”) and obtained a loan in
the amount of $3.3 million to help retain employees due to the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic. The Company’s Paycheck Protection Program loan
(“PPP Loan”) is fully forgivable if the Company meets certain requirements and receives formal approval, as defined by the CARES Act, subject to an
audit by the SBA. The $3.3 million PPP Loan was fully forgiven in May 2021 and was recorded as a reduction of general and administrative expense in the
consolidated statement of operations.
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NOTE 7 – Fair Value Measures
Commodity Derivative Instruments
The following summarizes the fair value of the Company’s derivative assets and liabilities, by input level within the fair-value hierarchy (in
thousands):
Level 1

Assets (liabilities) at December 31, 2021 (Successor):
Commodity derivatives
Interest rate derivatives
Assets (liabilities) at December 31, 2020 (Predecessor):
Commodity derivatives
Interest rate derivatives

Level 2

Level 3

$
$

—
—

$
$

(106,931)
3,328

$
$

—
—

$
$

—
—

$
$

18,479
(674)

$
$

—
—

The fair value of the Company’s commodity and interest rate derivatives are determined using industry standard models that considered various
assumptions including current market and contractual prices for the underlying instruments, implied volatility, time value, non-performance risk, as well as
other relevant economic measures. These are considered Level 2 inputs as substantially all of these inputs are observable in the marketplace throughout the
full term of the instrument and can be supported by observable data.
No transfers between levels have occurred for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively.
Fair Value of Financial Instruments
The carrying values of the financial instruments included in current assets and current liabilities approximate fair value due to the short-term
maturities of these instruments.
The portion of the Company’s long-term debt related to its revolving credit facility approximates fair value due to the variable nature of related
interest rates. The Company has not elected to account for the portion of its debt related to its senior notes under the fair value option; however, the
Company has determined an estimate of the fair value based on measurements of trading activity and broker and/or dealer quotes, respectively, which are
published market prices, and therefore are Level 2 inputs. The table below presents these estimates of the fair value of the Company’s long-term debt (in
thousands):
Carrying Value

At December 31, 2021 (Successor):
Revolving credit facility
2025 Secured Notes (105.3% of par)1
At December 31, 2020 (Predecessor):
Revolving credit facility
2021 Notes (57.0% of par)2
2025 Notes (40.1% of par)3

$
$

242,000
300,883

$
$

242,000
328,404

$
$
$

339,000
249,718
71,987

$
$
$

339,000
143,363
30,088

_____________
1)

The carrying amount of the 2025 Secured Notes includes unamortized debt issuance costs and discounts of $11.0 million as of December 31, 2021.

2)

The carrying amount of the 2021 Senior Notes includes unamortized debt issuance costs and discounts of $1.8 million as of December 31, 2020.

3)

The carrying amount of the 2025 Senior Notes includes unamortized debt issuance costs and discounts of $3.0 million as of December 31, 2020.
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Estimated Fair Value

NOTE 8—Members’ Equity
On February 22, 2021, the Company completed the Recapitalization Transaction wherein all of the Company’s outstanding preferred and common
units, along with cash contributed by one of the common unitholders, were exchanged for 1,000,000 new authorized, issued and outstanding common units
(“Common Units”). Additional Common Units will be issued upon any exercise of common unit Warrants. The common unitholders are not required to
make any additional capital contributions to the Company or its subsidiaries, and distributions will be made to the Common Unitholders at the discretion of
the Company’s Board in proportion to each Common Unitholder’s ownership percentage in the Company at the time of distribution, as defined in the
Company’s Third Amended and Restated Limited Liability Agreement.
As part of the Recapitalization Transaction, the Company granted 41,667 freestanding common unit warrants at a strike price of $325.00 per
warrant to ACTOIL. The warrants are exercisable at the election of ACTOIL with cash or net common unit settled at any time before February 22, 2024,
upon the sale of all or substantially all of the assets of the Company or immediately prior to an initial public offering. The common unit warrants cannot be
net cash settled and are not contingently or mandatorily redeemable and therefore are equity classified.
NOTE 9—Preferred Units
In 2018, in connection with the acquisition of mineral rights, royalty interests and other associated assets, the Company issued to private investors
(the “Preferred Investors”) 275,000 Preferred Units (“Preferred Units”), par value of $1,000 per Preferred Unit, for an aggregate purchase price of $275.0
million, less an original issuance discount of $4.1 million, and transaction costs and advisory fees of $9.8 million.
The Preferred Investors received cumulative quarterly dividends at a rate of 8.0% per annum. The Company was required to pay dividends to the
Preferred Investors within ten business days after each fiscal quarter (March 31, June 30, September 30, and December 31). Dividends were eligible to be
paid in additional shares of Preferred Units (“PIK dividends”) for eight non-consecutive quarters. Subsequent to the eight quarters, all dividends were
required to be paid in cash.
As the Preferred Investors have an option to redeem the Preferred Units at a future date, the proceeds from the Preferred Units have been included
in temporary equity. Through September 30, 2020, the Preferred Units were remeasured each reporting period by accreting the initial value to the expected
redemption value at the Preferred Investors’ first non-contingent redemption date of January 1, 2028. Upon completion of the Recapitalization Transaction
in February 2021, the Preferred Units were remeasured to recognize the estimated change in redemption value triggered by the exchange. Please see Note 2
—Basis of Presentation and Principles of Consolidation and Recapitalization Transaction to our consolidated financial statements for more information.
Accumulated accretion, including the remeasurement at December 31, 2020, was $118.1 million as of December 31, 2020. The estimated redemption
value, excluding unpaid dividends, was $402.7 million as of December 31, 2020. The accretion is presented as a deemed dividend within the statements of
members’ equity and recorded in temporary equity on the consolidated balance sheets.
The Preferred Units had no voting rights. The Preferred Units were evaluated for embedded derivative features, some of which require bifurcation;
however, those features had insignificant value upon issuance. The Company determined that the inputs and assumptions used to value the embedded
derivative features of the Preferred Units had not significantly changed since issuance and no value has been assigned to the embedded features as of
December 31, 2020.
As of December 31, 2020, the Company had 295,859 Preferred Units authorized, issued and outstanding. For the year ended December 31, 2020,
the Company declared dividends of $23.1 million on the Company’s outstanding Preferred Units. The Company elected to pay PIK Dividends resulting in a
distribution of 10,755 Preferred Units at a par value of $1,000 per Preferred Unit for an aggregate amount of $10.8 million and a $12.3 million tax related
cash distribution for the year ended December 31, 2020. As of December 31, 2020, $3.1 million of the dividends were accrued, which were paid in January
2021.
On February 22, 2021, as part of the Recapitalization Transaction all 295,859 Preferred Units were exchanged for 800,000 Common Units at a
redemption value of approximately $400.0 million.
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The following table summarizes the activities for the Company’s Preferred Units (in thousands):
Beginning balance as of January 1, 2020 (Predecessor)
Accretion of preferred units
PIK dividends
Ending balance as of December 31, 2020 (Predecessor)
Recapitalization transaction

$

Ending balance as of December 31, 2021 (Successor)

$

$

324,893
64,352
10,755
(400,000)
(400,000)
—

NOTE 10—Related Party Transactions
Midstream Transactions
During the periods from January 1, 2021 through February 22, 2021 (Predecessor), February 23 through December 31, 2021 (Successor) and the
year ended December 31, 2020 (Predecessor), the Company received $4.1 million, $37.3 million and $19.6 million, respectively, in revenue and incurred
$2.2 million, $11.6 million and $16.8 million in gathering and transportation fees, respectively, with a midstream company that is accounted for using the
equity method. Please see Note 3—Summary of Significant Accounting Policies to the Company’s consolidated financial statements for more information
regarding the investment in unconsolidated entity. During the period from February 23, 2021 through December 31 2021 (Successor), the Company
received $93.5 million in revenue from a midstream company in which one of our members has an investment.
MSA with GWOC
For the period January 1, 2020 to July 17, 2020, costs incurred by GWOC on behalf of GWP were $16.2 million. Costs related to the MSA were
passed through to GWP as incurred with no markup and are in general and administrative expense on the consolidated statements of operations. There is no
proforma statement of operations related to GWP’s acquisition of GWOC as there was no markup of general and administrative expenses incurred by
GWOC on behalf of GWP.
Due to/from Affiliates
As of December 31, 2021 and 2020, there were amounts included in other assets, primarily related to deferred compensation of $4.7 million and
$4.1 million, respectively.
NOTE 11—Commitments and Contingencies
Volume Commitments
The Company has entered into firm sales agreements that require the Company to deliver minimum quantities of oil and natural gas to certain
third parties through 2029. If the Company is unable to fulfill all contractual obligations, the Company may be required to pay penalties or damages
pursuant to these agreements. Additionally, the Company has entered into agreements to purchase oil from certain third parties in 2021. If no deliveries
were made, the Company
would pay $115.2 million in 2022, $74.4 million in 2023, $72.0 million in 2024, $58.6 million in 2025, $51.6 million in 2026 and $74.4 million thereafter.
As of December 31, 2021, the Company anticipates meeting all delivery commitments.
In anticipation of the Company’s future drilling activities in the Wattenberg Field, in 2019 the Company entered into a ten-year water disposal
agreement with a midstream company. The Company will be bound by the volume requirements in the agreement on the actual in-service-date of the
pipeline connection. As of December 31, 2021, the pipeline is not in service, and therefore, the Company does not have any contractual commitment. In
January 2022, the agreement was terminated.
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Pipeline Connections
Well connection costs include costs the Company is liable for to connect production from the Company’s wells to existing pipelines. As of
December 31, 2021, there are no unpaid well connection costs for wells that have commenced construction prior to December 31, 2021.
Other Commitments
The other balance includes commitments for debt, drilling, operating rent and surface use agreement commitments. If the Company is unable to
fulfill all contractual obligations, the Company may be required to pay penalties or damages pursuant to these agreements of $3.8 million in 2022, $2.8
million in 2023, $1.7 million in 2024, $1.0 million in 2025, $1.0 million in 2026 and $0.7 million thereafter.
The Company has secured insurance policies including general property and liability, among others, to protect the Company against the risk of a
release of hydrocarbons into the atmosphere due to excess pressure built up in the well and also environmental liability insurance to provide protection in
the event of leaks in its pipes, tanks, or pits, which could potentially create environmental contamination.
Litigation
The Company is party to ongoing legal proceedings in the ordinary course of business. While the outcome of these proceedings cannot be
predicted with certainty, the Company does not believe the results of these proceedings, individually or in the aggregate, will have a material adverse effect
on the Company's business, financial condition, results of operations or liquidity.
General
The Company is subject to contingent liabilities with respect to existing or potential claims, lawsuits, and other proceedings, including those
involving environmental, tax and other matters. The Company records liabilities when it is probable that future costs will be incurred, and such costs can be
reasonably estimated. Such liabilities are based on developments to date and the Company’s estimates of the outcomes of these matters and its experience
in contesting, litigating and settling other matters. As the scope of the liabilities becomes better defined, there will be changes in the estimates of future
costs, which management currently believes will not have a material effect on the Company’s financial position, results of operations or cash flows.
NOTE 12—Significant Customers and Other Concentrations
Significant Customers
During the periods from January 1, 2021 through February 22, 2021 (Predecessor), February 23, 2021 through December 31, 2021 (Successor)
and the year ended December 31, 2020 (Predecessor), presented in the tables below, the Company’s revenues consisted of certain customers whose
purchases exceeded 10% of the total oil, natural gas and NGL
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revenues of the Company. The Company believes that the loss of a single purchaser would not materially affect the Company’s business because there are
numerous other purchasers in the area in which the Company sells production.
(Successor)
Period from February 23, 2021
through December 31, 2021

Customer A
Customer B
Customer C
Customer D
Customer E
Customer F
Total

33 %
14 %
18 %
12 %
3%
8%
88 %

(Predecessor)
Period from January 1, 2021 through
February 22, 2021

31 %
13 %
11 %
9%
18 %
9%
91 %

(Predecessor)
Year Ended December 31, 2020

16 %
15 %
9%
10 %
16 %
12 %
78 %

Concentration of Market Risk
The future results of the Company’s oil and natural gas operations will be affected by the market prices of oil and natural gas. The availability of a
ready market for crude oil and natural gas in the future will depend on numerous factors beyond the control of the Company, including weather, imports,
marketing of competitive fuels, proximity and capacity of oil and natural gas pipelines and other transportation facilities, any oversupply or undersupply of
oil and natural gas, the regulatory environment, the economic environment, and other regional and political events, none of which can be predicted with
any certainty.
The Company operates in the exploration, development, and production phases of the oil and natural gas industry. Its receivables include amounts
due from purchasers of oil and natural gas production and amounts due from joint interest owners for its respective portions of operating expense and
exploration and development costs. While certain of these customers and joint interest owners are affected by periodic downturns in the economy in
general or in its specific segment of the natural gas or oil industry, the Company believes its level of credit related losses due to such economic fluctuations
has been and will continue to be immaterial to the Company’s consolidated results of operations and cash flows in the long term. Trade receivables are
generally not collateralized.
NOTE 13—Employee Benefit Plan
The Company currently maintains a retirement plan intended to provide benefits under section 401(k) of the Internal Revenue Code, under which
employees are allowed to contribute portions of their compensation to a tax-qualified retirement account. In accordance with the 401(k) plan, the Company
provides matching contributions equal to 50% of the first 6% of employees’ eligible compensation contributed to the plan. As of August 1, 2021 the plan
was amended and the Company is now providing matching contributions equal to 100% of the first 6% of employees’ eligible compensation contributed to
the plan. The Company contributed $0.1 million, $0.5 million and $0.4 million for period January 1, 2021 through February 22, 2021 (Predecessor), the
period February 23, 2021 through December 31, 2021 (Successor) and for the year ended December 31, 2020 (Predecessor).
NOTE 14—Recently Issued and Adopted Accounting Pronouncements
In June 2016, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update 2016-13, Financial Instruments—Credit Losses (Topic 326) (“ASU 2016-13”). ASU
2016-13 affects trade receivables, financial assets and certain other instruments that are not measured at fair value through net income. This standard will
replace the currently required incurred loss approach with an expected loss model for instruments measured at amortized cost. The standard is effective for
fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2021, including interim periods within those fiscal years. The Company is currently evaluating the impact of
adoption of ASU 2016-13 on its consolidated financial statements.
In February 2016, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update 2016-02, Leases (Topic 842) (“ASU 2016-02”). The new standard requires
substantially all leases be recognized by lessees on their balance sheet as a right-of-use asset and corresponding lease liability, including today’s operating
leases. The standard is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2021, and interim periods within fiscal years beginning after December 15,
2022,
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with early adoption permitted. The FASB subsequently issued ASU 2018-01, which provided additional implementation guidance. The Company is
currently evaluating the impact of ASU 2016-02 on its consolidated financial statements and related disclosures. ASU 2016-02 does not apply to mineral
leases.
NOTE 15—Subsequent Events
The Company has evaluated all subsequent events through the date the financial statements are available to be issued of March 10, 2022, for items
that should potentially be recognized or disclosed in these financial statements.
In January 2022, the Company purchased all issued and outstanding membership interests in Pioneer Water Pipeline LLC for a purchase price of
$1.0 million.
In January 2022, the Company consented to the termination and distribution of the GWOC portion of the Broe Deferred Compensation Plan
(“Broe DCP”) which was completed in February 2022. The termination and distribution of the GWOC portion of the Broe DCP resulted in a reduction of
other non-current assets (Due from Affiliates) by approximately $4.7 million (Please see Note 10 – Related Party Transactions) and the reduction of other
non-current liabilities by approximately $3.6 million as a result of the full distribution of funds to participants in the GWOC portion of the Broe DCP.
On February 26, 2022, PDC Energy, Inc. (“PDC”) entered into a definitive membership interest purchase agreement with the Company and all of
its common unitholders under which PDC will acquire all of the membership interests of the Company directly from the common unitholders in a
transaction valued at approximately $1.3 billion. The transaction is expected to close in the second quarter of 2022. In the event the acquisition closes,
GWPM, the entity that owns a 10% equity interest in a midstream company (Please see Note 3), will be spun-off to all of the Company’s common
unitholders on a pro rata basis. This spun-off entity (“Transition Services Company”) will enter into an agreement with PDC to provide transition services
for a period of up to six months after the closing of the acquisition for a transaction services fee. A currently undetermined number of the Company’s
current employees will become employees of the Transition Services Company. All of GWP’s current common unitholders will contribute a portion of the
cash proceeds that they receive directly from PDC into the Transition Services Company to fund the costs of managing it and to pay severance and
incentive-related costs that are contingent upon the acquisition closing (collectively, the “Contingent Employee Costs”). All Contingent Employee Costs
will be incurred and paid by the Transition Services Company, and no liability for Contingent Employee Costs will be assumed by PDC at the close of the
transaction. Due to the variability in the number of employees that will become employed by PDC, variability in the number of employees that will become
employees of the Transition Services Company, and the variability of the contingent incentive-related costs due to any transaction-related purchase price
adjustments, the Contingent Employee Costs are not estimable at this time.
NOTE 16— Oil and Natural Gas Information (Unaudited)
Capitalized Costs
A summary of the Company’s capitalized costs are contained in the table below (in thousands).
December 31,
2021

Proved oil and natural gas properties
Unproved oil and natural gas properties
Wells in progress
Gross oil and gas properties
Less: accumulated depletion

$

Oil and gas properties, net
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1,447,256
17,469
120,010
1,584,735
(125,591)
1,459,144

2020

$

2,584,641
48,071
95,891
2,728,603
(1,074,303)
1,654,300

Results of Operations for Oil, Natural Gas and NGL Producing Properties
The following are the results of operations of the Company’s oil and natural gas producing activities before corporate overhead and interest expenses (in
thousands):
(Successor)
Period from
February 23, 2021
through December
31, 2021

Revenues
Operating Expenses:
Production expenses
Exploration expenses
Depreciation, depletion and amortization
Total operating expenses
Results of Operations

$

609,971

$

97,270
3,983
127,608
228,861
381,110

(Predecessor)

(Predecessor)

Period from January
1, 2021, through
February 22, 2021

Year Ended
December 31, 2020

$

96,659

$

18,371
722
45,670
64,763
31,896

$

342,323

$

92,342
6,751
298,552
397,645
(55,322)

Costs Incurred in Oil and Natural Gas Property Acquisition and Development Activities
A summary of the Company’s costs incurred in oil and natural gas property acquisition and development activities is set forth below (in thousands):
(Successor)
Period from
February 23, 2021
through December
31, 2021

Acquisition costs
Proved properties
Unproved properties
Development costs
Exploration costs

$

$

Total acquisition, development and exploration costs

—
3,009
256,219
3,983
263,211

(Predecessor)

(Predecessor)

Period from January
1, 2021, through
February 22, 2021

Year Ended
December 31, 2020

$

$

—
211
40,879
722
41,812

$

$

794
4,604
288,360
6,751
300,509

Reserve Quantity Information
The following information represents estimates of the Company’s proved reserves as of December 31, 2021 and 2020, which have been prepared
and presented under SEC rules. These rules require SEC reporting companies to prepare their reserve estimates using specified reserve definitions and
pricing based on a 12-month unweighted average of the first-day-of-the-month pricing. The pricing that was used for estimates of the Company’s reserves
as of December 31, 2021 and 2020 was based on an unweighted 12-month average WTI posted price per Bbl for oil, a Henry Hub spot natural gas price per
Mcf for natural gas, and a percentage of WTI posted price per barrel for NGLs, adjusted for differential to realized prices, as set forth in the following table
(in thousands):
2021

Oil (per Bbl)
Natural gas (per Mcf)
NGLs (per Bbl)

$
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2020

63.54
26.50
3.11

$

36.09
1.53
11.06

Subject to limited exceptions, proved undeveloped reserves may only be booked if they relate to wells scheduled to be drilled within five years of
the date of booking. This requirement has limited, and may continue to limit, the Company’s potential to record additional proved undeveloped reserves as
it pursues its drilling program, particularly as it develops its significant acreage in the DJ Basin of Colorado. Moreover, the Company may be required to
write down its proved undeveloped reserves if it revises its drill plan to not drill those reserves with five years of initial booking. The Company does not
have any proved undeveloped reserves which have remained undeveloped for five years or more.
The Company’s proved oil and natural gas reserves are all located in the United States, primarily in the Denver-Julesburg of Colorado. All of the
estimates of the proved reserves at December 31, 2021, 2020 and 2019 were audited by Ryder Scott Company, L.P., independent petroleum engineers.
Proved reserves were estimated in accordance with the guidelines established by the SEC and the FASB.
Oil and natural gas reserve quantity estimates are subject to numerous uncertainties inherent in the estimation of quantities of proved reserves and
in the projection of future rates of production and the timing of development expenditures. The accuracy of such estimates is a function of the quality of
available data and of engineering and geological interpretation and judgment. Results of subsequent drilling, testing and production may cause either
upward or downward revision of previous estimates.
Further, the volumes considered to be commercially recoverable fluctuate with changes in prices and operating costs. The Company emphasizes
that reserve estimates are inherently imprecise and that estimates of new discoveries are more imprecise than those of currently producing oil and natural
gas properties. Accordingly, these estimates are expected to change as additional information becomes available in the future.
The following table provides a roll-forward of the total proved reserves for the years ended periods ended December 31, 2021 and February 22,
2021 and for the year ended December 31, 2020 as well as proved developed and proved undeveloped reserves at the beginning and end of each respective
year (in thousands):
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Oil
(MBbl)

Natural Gas
(MMcf)

Natural Gas
Liquids
(MBbl)

Total
(MBoe)

End of year, December 31, 2019 (Predecessor)
Revisions
Extensions and discoveries
Acquisition of reserves
Production
End of year, December 31, 2020 (Predecessor)
Revisions
Extensions and discoveries
Production
End of period, February 22, 2021 (Predecessor)

92,775
(18,387)
7,554
372
(8,872)
73,442
297
289
(1,651)
72,377

500,610
(56,712)
36,767
1,867
(40,809)
441,723
2,113
1,882
(9,029)
436,689

44,945
5,161
3,998
195
(5,141)
49,158
355
216
(1,113)
48,616

221,155
(22,678)
17,680
878
(20,815)
196,220
1,004
819
(4,269)
193,774

February 23, 2021 (Successor)
Revisions
Extensions and discoveries
Production

72,377
(10,341)
4,885
(5,862)
61,059

436,689
(25,647)
28,317
(29,929)
409,430

48,616
7,246
3,800
(4,042)
55,620

193,774
(7,369)
13,404
(14,892)
184,917

22,935
22,504
23,526

201,084
199,730
212,011

21,834
21,688
28,340

78,283
77,480
87,201

50,507
49,873
37,533

240,639
236,959
197,419

27,324
26,928
27,280

117,937
116,294
97,716

End of period, December 31, 2021 (Successor)
Proved developed reserves:
December 31, 2020
February 22, 2021
December 31, 2021
Proved undeveloped reserves:
December 31, 2020
February 22, 2021
December 31, 2021

The tables above include changes in estimated quantities of oil and natural gas reserves shown in Bbl equivalents (“Boe”) at a rate of six Mcf per
one Bbl.
Extensions and discoveries of 13.4 MMBoe of proved reserves during the period February 23, 2021 through December 31, 2021, were primarily
the result of a 12.8 MMBoe increase due to drilling new wells during the period and a 0.6 MMBoe increase of new proved undeveloped locations added
during the period that were not previously considered proved reserves. Extensions and discoveries of 0.8 MMBoe of proved reserves during the period
January 1, 2021 through February 22, 2021, were primarily the result of a 0.8 MMBoe increase due to drilling new wells during the period and no increase
of new proved undeveloped locations added during the period that were not previously considered proved reserves. Extensions and discoveries of 17.7
MMBoe of proved reserves during the year ended December 31, 2020, were primarily the result of a 7.4 MMBoe increase due to drilling new wells during
the period and a 10.3 MMBoe increase of new proved undeveloped locations added during the period that were not previously considered proved reserves.
No divestitures of reserves during the year ended periods ended February 23, 2021 through December 31, 2021 and January 1, 2021 through
February 22, 2021 and for the year ended December 31, 2020.
Revisions of 7.4 MMBoe of proved reserves during the period February 23, 2021 through December 31, 2021 were primarily the result of the
Company adjusting the well spacing from a maximum 30 wells per 1-mile wide drilling block to a maximum of 24 wells per 1-mile wide drilling block as a
result of well performance and other operators results in immediately offset locations, resulting in a downward revision of 13.8MMBoe. Additionally, the
Company
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made adjustments to their well type curves, currently producing forecasts, and updated completion designs during the year, resulting in an upward revision
of 6.4MMBoe. Revisions of 1.0 MMBoe of proved reserves during the period from January 1, 2021 through February 22, 2021 were due to working
interest changes in certain wells. Revisions of 22.7 MMBoe of proved reserves during the year ended December 31, 2020 were primarily the result of the
Company adjusting the well spacing from a maximum 30 wells per 1-mile wide drilling block to a maximum of 24 wells per 1-mile wide drilling block as a
result of well performance and other operators results in immediately offset locations, resulting in a downward revision of 7.1MMBoe. Additionally, the
Company made adjustments to their well type curves, currently producing forecasts, and updated completion designs during the year, resulting in a
downward revision of 15.6MMBoe.
Acquisitions of 0.9 MMBoe and 3.6 MMBoe of proved reserves during the year ended December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively, related to
acquiring proved reserves.
Standardized Measure of Discounted Future Net Cash Flows
The standardized measure of discounted future net cash flows does not purport to be, nor should it be interpreted to present, the fair value of the oil and
natural gas reserves of the property. An estimate of fair value would take into account, among other things, the recovery of reserves not presently classified
as proved, the value of unproved properties, and consideration of expected future economic and operating conditions. The estimates of future cash flows
and future production and development costs as of December 31, 2021, February 22, 2021, and December 31, 2020 are based on the unweighted arithmetic
average first-day-of-the-month price for the preceding 12-month period. Estimated future production of proved reserves and estimated future production
and development costs of proved reserves are based on current costs and economic conditions. All wellhead prices are held flat over the forecast period for
all reserve categories. The estimated future net cash flows are then discounted at a rate of 10%. The standardized measure of discounted future net cash
flows relating to proved oil and natural gas reserves is as follows (in thousands):
(Successor)
Period from
February 23, 2021
through December
31, 2021

Future cash inflows (total revenues)
Future production costs (severance and ad valorem taxes plus LOE)
Future development costs (capital costs)
Future income tax expense1
Future net cash flows
10% annual discount for estimated timing of cash flows

$

Standardized measure of discounted future net cash flows

$

6,625,320
(2,566,371)
(1,002,123)
—
3,056,826
(1,107,397)
1,949,429

(Predecessor)

(Predecessor)

Period from January
1, 2021, through
February 22, 2021

Year Ended
December 31, 2020

$

$

3,789,211
(1,976,056)
(923,648)
—
889,507
(354,180)
535,327

$

$

3,869,537
(2,001,843)
(932,478)
—
935,216
(368,722)
566,494

_____________
(1) Future net cash flows do not include the effects of U.S. federal income taxes on future results because the Company is a limited liability company not subject to entity-level federal income
taxation as of December 31, 2021 and 2020.

It is not intended that the FASB’s standardized measure of discounted future net cash flows represent the fair market value of the Company’s
proved reserves. The Company cautions that the disclosures shown are based on estimates of proved reserve quantities and future production schedules
which are inherently imprecise and subject to revision, and the 10% discount rate is arbitrary. In addition, costs and prices as of the measurement date are
used in the determinations, and no value may be assigned to probable or possible reserves.
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Changes in the Standardized Measure of Discounted Future Net Cash Flows
A summary of the changes in the standardized measure of discounted future net cash flows are contained in the table below (in thousands):
(Successor)
Period from
February 23, 2021
through December
31, 2021

Standardized Measure, beginning of the year
Net change in prices and production costs
Net change in future development costs
Sales, Less production costs
Extensions
Acquisitions
Divestitures
Revisions of previous quantity estimates
Previously estimated development costs incurred
Accretion of discount
Changes in timing and other

$

Standardized Measure, end of the year

$
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535,327
1,613,618
115,936
(512,702)
223,657
—
—
18,951
70,049
48,423
(163,830)
1,949,429

(Predecessor)

(Predecessor)

Period from January
1, 2021, through
February 22, 2021

Year Ended
December 31, 2020

$

$

566,494
23,153
(412)
(78,288)
6,357
—
—
152
8,895
8,226
750
535,327

$

$

1,876,715
(1,244,422)
(124,306)
(249,979)
78,274
2,031
—
(97,984)
173,719
187,671
(35,225)
566,494

EXHIBIT 99.2

Quarterly Report
Condensed consolidated financial statements as of March 31, 2022 (Successor),
for the three months ended March 31, 2022 (Successor), for the period January
1, 2021 through February 22, 2021 (Predecessor), and for the period February
23, 2021 through March 31, 2021 (Successor)

INDEX TO UNAUDITED CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Page
GREAT WESTERN PETROLEUM, LLC
Unaudited Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements
Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets as of March 31, 2022 (Successor) and December 31, 2021 (Successor)
Condensed Consolidated Statements of Operations for the Three Months Ended March 31, 2022 (Successor), for the Period February 23, 2021
through March 31, 2021 (Successor) and for the Period January 1, 2021 through February 22, 2021 (Predecessor)
Condensed Consolidated Statements of Members’ Equity for the Three Months Ended March 31, 2022 (Successor), for the Period February 23,
2021 through December 31, 2021 (Successor) and for the Period January 1, 2021 through February 22, 2021 (Predecessor)
Condensed Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the Three Months Ended March 31, 2022 (Successor), for the Period February 23, 2021
through March 31, 2021 (Successor) and for the Period January 1, 2021 through February 22, 2021 (Predecessor)
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

F-1
F-2
F-3
F-4
F-5

GREAT WESTERN PETROLEUM, LLC AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(IN THOUSANDS)
(UNAUDITED)
(Successor)

(Successor)
December 31,

March 31, 2022

2021

ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivalents

$

Accounts receivable

38,581

$

156,443

Derivative instruments
Prepaid expenses and other assets
Total current assets

34,104
110,258

3,158

226

15,516

25,630

213,698

170,218

1,534,669

1,459,144

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT:
Oil and natural gas properties, successful efforts method, net
Other property and equipment
Total property, plant and equipment, net

7,793

7,964

1,542,462

1,467,108

NON-CURRENT ASSETS:
Restricted cash

8,130

8,080

18,906

18,906

Derivative instruments

7,186

3,102

Other assets

5,562

Investment in unconsolidated entity

Total assets

8,253

$

1,795,944

$

1,675,667

$

248,918

$

216,930

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Accrued liabilities
Accounts payable

34,587

17,143

Production taxes payable

39,719

42,940

Current portion of asset retirement obligations
Derivative instruments
Other liabilities

5,733

7,297

219,820

103,495

507

507

549,284

388,312

Revolving credit facility

227,000

242,000

Debt, net

301,474

300,883

Production taxes payable

104,013

79,053

4,826

4,749

10,153

3,436

Total current liabilities
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES:

Asset retirement obligations
Derivative instruments
Other liabilities
Total non-current liabilities
Total liabilities

2,429

5,632

649,895

635,753

1,199,179

1,024,065

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (see NOTE 11)
MEMBERS’ EQUITY:
Members’ equity

596,765
$

Total liabilities and equity

See accompanying notes to the condensed consolidated financial statements
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1,795,944

651,602
$

1,675,667

GREAT WESTERN PETROLEUM, LLC AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
(IN THOUSANDS)
(UNAUDITED)
(Successor)

(Successor)

(Predecessor)

Three Months Ended
March 31, 2022

Period from February
23, 2021 through
March 31, 2021

Period from January 1,
2021 through February
22, 2021

REVENUES:
Oil, NGL and natural gas revenue

$

236,100

$

67,771

$

96,659

OPERATING EXPENSES:
Lease operating expense

12,845

3,919

6,953

2,538

1,373

1,481

334

503

722

Production and severance tax

19,218

3,585

9,937

Depreciation, depletion and amortization

43,386

13,917

45,670

9,210

3,015

6,887

Total operating expenses

87,531

26,312

71,650

Operating income (loss)

148,569

41,459

25,009

Gathering and transportation expense
Exploration expense

General and administrative expense

OTHER INCOME (EXPENSE):
Interest expense, net
(Loss) gain on derivative instruments, net
Other (expense) income
Total other income (expense)
$

NET INCOME (LOSS)

(10,250)

(4,818)

(6,509)

(193,564)

14,881

(99,527)

408

(61)

23

(203,406)

10,002

(106,013)

(54,837)

$

See accompanying notes to the condensed consolidated financial statements
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51,461

$

(81,004)

GREAT WESTERN PETROLEUM, LLC AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF MEMBERS’ EQUITY
(IN THOUSANDS)
(UNAUDITED)

Predecessor balance at December 31, 2020

$

Preferred units paid-in-kind dividends, deemed dividends, and return (16.5% IRR)

504,916
(3,353)

Net loss

(81,004)

Predecessor balance at February 22, 2021

$

420,559

Successor initial investment at February 23, 2021

$

507,500

Net income

144,102

Successor balance at December 31, 2021

651,602

Net loss

(54,837)
$

Successor balance at March 31, 2022
See accompanying notes to the condensed consolidated financial statements
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596,765

GREAT WESTERN PETROLEUM, LLC AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(IN THOUSANDS)
(UNAUDITED)
(Successor)

(Successor)

(Predecessor)

Three Months
Ended March 31,
2022

Period from
February 23, 2021
through March 31,
2021

Period from
January 1, 2021,
through February
22, 2021

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net income (loss)

$

(54,837)

$

51,461

$

(81,004)

Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash provided by operating activities:
Exploration expense
Depreciation, depletion and amortization
Amortization of debt discount and issuance costs

334

503

722

43,386

13,917

45,670

935

358

601

193,564

(14,881)

99,527

—

61

(23)

(37,832)

49,392

(57,583)

12,461

(1,118)

(11,634)

Accrued liabilities

4,187

7,233

(2,417)

Accounts payable

17,444

(6,597)

27,352

(Gain) loss on derivative instruments
Equity in (income) loss of unconsolidated entity
Change in current assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable
Prepaid expenses and other assets

Production taxes payable
Net cash provided by operating activities

21,739

(11,679)

13,375

201,381

88,650

34,586

(116,628)

(38,587)

(34,482)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Exploration and development of oil and natural gas properties
Acquisition of oil and natural gas properties and land
Net cash receipts (payments) on settled derivative instruments and premiums
Net cash used in investing activities

(1,213)

—

—

(64,013)

(5,235)

5,170

(181,854)

(43,822)

(29,312)
—

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Proceeds from revolving credit facility

117,000

—

Repayments of revolving credit facility

(132,000)

(49,000)

—

Prepayment on redemption of senior notes

—

—

(27,139)

Payments of debt issuance costs

—

(68)

(697)

Distribution to preferred unitholders

—

—

(3,353)

(15,000)

(49,068)

(31,189)

4,527

(4,240)

(25,915)

42,184

34,000

46,415

Net cash used in financing activities
Net increase (decrease) in cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash
Cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash at beginning of period
$

Cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash at end of period

46,711

$

29,760

$

20,500

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION:
Cash paid for interest, net of capitalized interest

18,544

9,871

3,562

9,257

14,334

7,660

—

—

5,476

13,525

2,963

2,850

—

251,514

—

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF NON-CASH ACTIVITIES:
Oil and natural gas properties—change in accruals and accounts payable
Accounts receivable included in derivative instrument
Accrued liability included in derivative instrument
Prepayment on senior notes

See accompanying notes to the condensed consolidated financial statements
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GREAT WESTERN PETROLEUM, LLC AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE UNAUDITED CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NOTE 1—Organization and Nature of Operations
Great Western Petroleum, LLC (the “Company” or “GWP”) is owned by EIG Dunedin Equity Aggregator, L.P. (“EIG”), TPG Energy Solutions
Green, L.P. (“TPG”), GWP Holdings Corp 1 (“GWPHC”), EP Synergy Investments, Inc. (“EPSI”), ActOil Colorado, LLC (“ACTOIL”) and Great Western
Oil and Gas Company, LLC (“GWOG”) and was formed to explore, produce and develop oil and natural gas in northern Colorado. The Company was
initially formed on September 4, 2013 through the contribution of cash and assets to the proportion of 50.1% interest to GWOG and 49.9% interest to
ACTOIL. On July 1, 2017, the 50.1% interest owned by GWOG was allocated 1.95% to GWOG and 48.15% to GWPHC. On February 22, 2021, the
Company completed a recapitalization (“Recapitalization Transaction”) where all of GWP’s outstanding preferred units and common members’ equity
interests, along with cash contributed by one of the common members, were exchanged for new common units. Subsequent to the Recapitalization
Transaction EIG owns 47.6%, TPG owns 21.8%, GWPHC owns 12.0%, EPSI owns 10.6%, ACTOIL owns 7.5% and GWOG owns 0.5% of the
outstanding common units of GWP. GWP has a 100% interest in Grizzly Petroleum Company, LLC, Great Western Finance Corp and Great Western
Petroleum Midstream Holdings, LLC (“GWPMH”) (collectively with GWP, the “Company”). GWPMH has a 100% interest in Great Western Petroleum
Midstream I, LLC (“GWPM I”) and Great Western Petroleum II, LLC (“GWPM II”). GWPM II has a 100% interest in Pioneer Water Pipeline LLC.
The Company is organized as a limited liability company under the laws of the State of Delaware. As such, the members have limited liability
unless an act by the member is undertaken with deliberate intent to cause injury or with reckless disregard for the best interests of the Company.
NOTE 2—Basis of Presentation and Principles of Consolidation and Recapitalization Transaction
These condensed consolidated financial statements include the accounts of GWP and its wholly owned subsidiaries. All significant intercompany
transactions have been eliminated.
Our accompanying unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements and notes were prepared in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States (“GAAP”) for interim financial information, and intercompany accounts and balances have been eliminated.
Accordingly, certain information and disclosures normally included in complete consolidated financial statements prepared in accordance with GAAP have
been omitted. The unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements and notes should be read in conjunction with our audited consolidated financial
statements and notes for the year ended December 31, 2021. The unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements furnished in this report reflect all
adjustments that are, in the opinion of management, necessary for a fair statement of the results for interim periods. All such adjustments are of a normal
recurring nature. The results for any interim period are not necessarily indicative of the expected results for the entire year.
Preparation in accordance with GAAP requires the Company to (1) adopt accounting policies within accounting rules set by the Financial
Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) and (2) make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues, expenses
and other disclosed amounts. The Company assessed the carrying value of its long-lived assets with the information reasonably available to it and the
unknown future impacts of volatile oil, natural gas and NGL prices and inflation as of March 31, 2022 and December 31, 2021 and through the date of this
report. As a result of these assessments the Company did not identify any impairment as of March 31, 2022 and December 31, 2021. A future assessment
of the magnitude and duration of the impacts of volatile oil, natural gas and NGL prices and inflation, could result in material impacts to the condensed
consolidated financial statements in future reporting periods. The Company believes the major estimates and assumptions impacting its condensed
consolidated financial statements are as follows:
•

estimates of proved reserves of oil and natural gas, which affect the calculations of depletion, depreciation and amortization and impairment
of capitalized costs of oil and natural gas properties;

•

depreciation and depletion of property and equipment;

•

impairment of undeveloped properties and other assets;
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•

estimates of asset retirement obligations;

•

valuation of commodity derivative instruments;

•

valuation of Unit Appreciation Rights;

•

valuation of convertible preferred units and related embedded features;

•

assignment of fair value to assets acquired and liabilities assumed in connection with acquisitions that are considered business combinations
and allocating purchase price in connection with acquisitions that are considered asset acquisitions;

•

revenue and capital accruals; and

•

valuation of assets acquired and liabilities assumed as part of the Recapitalization Transaction.

Actual results may differ from estimates and assumptions of future events and these revisions could be significant. Future production may vary
significantly from estimated oil and natural gas proved reserves. Actual future prices may vary significantly from price assumptions. The Company
operates as a single reportable segment: the oil and natural gas exploration and production industry in the United States. All of the Company’s operations
are conducted in one geographic area of the United States. All revenues are derived from customers located in the United States.
The Recapitalization Transaction resulted in EIG controlling the majority of the voting power of GWP through its ability to appoint 3 of the 5
board members of GWP. EIG’s control of the majority of the voting power of GWP results in EIG being the acquirer of GWP. The following is a summary
of certain key aspects of the Recapitalization Transaction on February 22, 2021:
•

All of the Company’s outstanding preferred and common members’ equity interest, along with cash contributed by one of the common
unitholders, were exchanged for new authorized, issued and outstanding common units and common unit warrants. Please see Note 8—
Members’ Equity and Note—10 Preferred Units to the Company’s condensed consolidated financial statements for more information.

•

The Company used the proceeds from the issuance of the 2025 Secured Notes along with cash on hand to redeem all outstanding principal on
the 2021 Notes. Please see Note 6—Debt to the Company’s condensed consolidated financial statements for more information.

•

The Company exchanged all outstanding principal on the 2025 Notes for additional 2025 Secured Notes. Please see Note 6—Debt to the
Company’s condensed consolidated financial statements for more information.

The exchange of outstanding preferred and common members’ equity interest, along with cash by one of the common unitholders for new
common units and common unit warrants noted above resulted in a change of control and is a business combination under ASC 805. The assets acquired
and liabilities assumed have been recorded as of the February 23, 2021 at fair value and are summarized as follows (in thousands):
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Consideration

$

507,500

$

428,073

Allocation of Purchase Price
Assets acquired1,2
Current assets
Oil and gas properties

1,329,276

Long-term assets

44,371

Total assets acquired

1,801,720

Liabilities Assumed
(579,996)

Current liabilities2
Long-term liabilities

(714,224)

Total liabilities assumed

(1,294,220)
$

Fair value of net assets acquired

507,500

_____________
1)

Within current assets is $13.5 million in cash received from one of the new common unitholders which was paid contemporaneously with the Recapitalization Transaction. This cash is
excluded from the Predecessor’s Statement of Cash Flows as it relates to funding of the Successor.

2)

The balances of current assets and current liabilities do not include the prepaid assets and current debt of $251.5 million related to the repayment of the 2021 Notes which occurred in March
2021. Please see Note 6—Debt to the Company’s condensed consolidated financial statements and the Statement of Cash Flows in the condensed consolidated financial statements for
details.

To account for the transaction described above, the Company has elected to apply pushdown accounting. Accordingly, the Company has reflected
the new basis of accounting established by EIG through its application of ASC 805 to the individual assets and liabilities of the Company. The financial
statements of the Company have been presented as follows, which are not comparable due to push down accounting and therefore have been segregated
between a predecessor and successor period:
•

Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheet: The Balance Sheet as of March 31, 2022 and December 31, 2021 is presented under the new basis
(“Successor”).

•

Condensed Consolidated Statement of Operations and Condensed Consolidated Statement of Cash flows: The three months ended March 31, 2022
and the period from February 23, 2021 through March 31, 2021 is presented under the new basis (“Successor”) with a black line separating the
period from January 1, 2021 through February 22, 2021 which are presented under the old basis (“Predecessor”).

NOTE 3—Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Oil and Natural Gas Producing Properties
Proved—The Company uses the successful efforts method of accounting for oil and natural gas properties. In accordance with this method, all
property acquisition costs and costs of exploratory wells are capitalized as incurred, pending the determination of proved reserves. If proved reserves are
not found, costs are expensed. Costs associated with developmental activities are capitalized as incurred regardless of proved reserves being found.
Unproved—Investments in unproved properties are not depleted until it is determined proved reserves exist. Unproved properties are assessed
periodically to ascertain whether impairment has occurred. Unproved properties are grouped for purposes of assessing impairment. Management considers
the primary lease terms of the properties, the holding period of the properties, success of holding leases through drilling, and geographic and geologic data
obtained relating to the properties while grouping properties to assess impairment. The amount of impairment is reported as a period expense within
exploration expense.
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Wells in Progress—Wells in progress represent the costs associated with wells that have not been completed as of the balance sheet date. At the
time a well is completed and producing, the accumulated capitalized costs for the well is reclassified to proved property and included in the depletion
calculation.
Capitalized Interest—The Company capitalizes interest on expenditures made in connection with exploration and development projects that are in
progress. Interest is capitalized during the period that activities occur to bring the projects to their intended use.
Oil and natural gas properties, net, consist of the following (in thousands):

Proved oil and natural gas properties

$

Unproved oil and natural gas properties
Wells in progress
Total oil and natural gas properties
Less: accumulated depletion
Total oil and natural gas properties, net

(Successor)

(Predecessor)

March 31,

December 31,

2022

2021

1,573,465

$

1,447,256

17,977

17,469

111,712

120,010

1,703,154

1,584,735

(168,485)

(125,591)

1,534,669

1,459,144

In conjunction with pushdown accounting, oil and natural gas properties were measured at fair value as of the Acquisition Date. Please see Note 2
— Basis of Presentation and Principles of Consolidation and Recapitalization Transaction to the Company’s consolidated financial statements.
Costs of oil and natural gas properties include capitalized interest of $2.1 million and $1.3 million for the three months ended March 31, 2022 and
for the period February 23, 2021 through March 31, 2021 (Successor). There was no capitalized interest recorded for the period January 1, 2021 through
February 22, 2021 (Predecessor).
Property acquisition and development costs are depleted using the units of production method on a field basis aggregated by common geological
structure or stratigraphic condition. Costs to carry, retain, maintain and repair properties are expensed as incurred, and new leases and improvements are
capitalized as property and equipment.
The Company evaluates its long-lived assets, to be held and used, including proved oil and natural gas properties, by field on an annual basis or
when events or circumstances indicate that the carrying value of those assets may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is indicated if the sum of the
expected future cash flows is less than the carrying amount of the assets. If an impairment loss is indicated, the Company recognizes the impairment loss
for the amount that the carrying amount of the asset exceeds its estimated fair value. The Company did not recognize any impairment expense for proved
properties for the three month periods ended March 31, 2022 or 2021. Unproved properties were amortized and impaired using the individually
insignificant lease basis and charged to exploration expense in the amount of $0.3 million, $0.7 million and $0.5 million for the three months ended March
31, 2022 (Successor), the period January 1, 2021 through February 22, 2021 (Predecessor), and the period February 23, 2021 through March 31, 2021
(Successor).
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Accrued Liabilities
Accrued liabilities include the following as of March 31, 2022 and December 31, 2021, respectively (in thousands).
`

Accrued capital and operating expenses

(Successor)

(Predecessor)

March 31,

December 31,

2022

2021

$

68,255

Revenue payable

$

54,776

146,665

130,071

Accrued compensation expense

3,111

5,473

Interest payable

3,898

13,147

26,989

13,463

Derivative payable
$

Total accrued liabilities

248,918

$

216,930

Revenue Recognition
The Company recognizes revenue in accordance with FASB ASC Topic 606 – Revenue from Contracts with Customers (“ASC 606”). Revenue is
recognized at the point in time at which the Company’s performance obligations under its commodity sales contracts are satisfied and control of the
commodity is transferred to the customer. The Company has determined that its contracts for the sale of crude oil, unprocessed natural gas, residue gas and
NGLs contain monthly performance obligations to deliver product at locations specified in the contract. Control is transferred at the delivery location, at
which point the performance obligation has been satisfied and revenue is recognized. Fees included in the contract that are incurred prior to control transfer
are classified as gathering and transportation expense, and fees incurred after control transfers are included as a reduction to the transaction price. The table
below presents the disaggregation of revenue by product type for the three months ended March 31, 2022 (Successor), the period from January 1, 2021
through February 22, 2021 (Predecessor), and the period from February 23, 2021 through March 31, 2021 (Successor):
(Successor)

(Successor)

(Predecessor)

Three Months Ended
March 31, 2022

Period from
February 23, 2021
through March 31,
2021

Period from January
1, 2021, through
February 22, 2021

REVENUE:
Oil revenue

$

NGL and natural gas revenue

167,476

$

68,624
$

Oil, NGL and natural gas revenue

236,100

43,536

$

24,235
$

67,771

53,138
43,521

$

96,659

The Company records sales revenue based on an estimate of the volumes delivered at estimated prices as determined by the applicable sales
agreement, which is variable based on commodity pricing. The Company estimates its sales volumes based on company-measured volume readings. Oil,
natural gas and NGL sales are adjusted in subsequent periods based on data received from the Company’s purchasers that reflects actual volumes and prices
received which is typically within two months of transfer of control to the purchaser. Historically, the difference between estimated and actual sales
revenues has not been material. For the three months ended March 31, 2022 (Successor), for the period January 1, 2021 through February 22, 2021
(Predecessor), and for the period February 23, 2021 through December 31, 2021 (Successor), the impact of any natural gas imbalances was not significant.
From time to time the Company may enter into short term marketing contracts where the Company purchases and re-sells oil and natural gas to
meet its marketing commitments. The Company acts as an agent in these transactions as the oil and natural gas is not controlled by the Company and
therefore the associated purchase and sale are presented net on the consolidated statements of operations. Historically, the difference between purchases and
sales have not been material.
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Reclassifications
Certain prior period balances have been reclassified to conform to the current year presentation. Such reclassifications had no effect on the
Company’s operating income, net income, cash flows or members’ equity previously reported.
NOTE 4—Acquisitions, Exchanges and Divestitures
For the three months ended March 31, 2022 (Successor) and the period February 23, 2021 through March 31, 2021 (Successor) the Company
spent $1.2 million and $0.2 million on leasing and did not close any other acquisitions. For the period January 1, 2021 through February 22, 2021
(Predecessor) the Company did not close on any leases or other acquisitions.
NOTE 5—Derivative Instruments
The Company uses financial derivative instruments as part of its price and interest rate risk management program to achieve a more predictable,
economic cash flow from its oil and natural gas production and limiting exposure to interest rate changes by reducing its exposure to commodity price and
interest rate fluctuations. Historically, the Company has entered into financial swaps, purchased puts and collars.
Each swap contract has an established contractually set fixed price (the “Fixed Price”). When the settlement price of the commodity is above the
Fixed Price, the Company pays its counterparty an amount equal to the difference between the settlement price of the commodity and the Fixed Price
multiplied by the contract volume. When the settlement price of the commodity is below the Fixed Price, the counterparty pays the Company an amount
equal to the difference between the settlement price of the commodity and the Fixed Price multiplied by the contract volume.
Basis swaps are designed to establish a fixed price differential between pricing at two different locations. The Price the Company receives for
natural gas production generally varies from the NYMEX Henry Hub price used in swap and collar contracts, due to adjustments for delivery location and
other factors.
The purchased put establishes the minimum price that the Company will receive for the contracted volumes unless the market price for the
commodity falls below the sold put strike price, at which point the minimum price equals the reference price plus the excess of the purchased put strike
price over the sold put strike price.
Each collar transaction has an established price floor and ceiling. When the settlement price is below the price floor established by these collars,
the Company receives an amount from its counterparty equal to the difference between the commodity settlement price and the price floor multiplied by the
contract volume. When the settlement price is above the price ceiling established by these collars, the Company pays its counterparty an amount equal to
the difference between the settlement price and the price ceiling multiplied by the commodity derivative contract volume.
Interest-rate swaps are used to fix interest rates on existing or anticipated indebtedness. The purpose of these instruments is to manage the Company’s
existing or anticipated exposure to interest-rate changes. The fair value of the Company’s current interest-rate swap portfolio is subject to changes in
interest rates.
Below is a summary of the Company’s open commodity derivative instrument positions as of March 31, 2022, by product and strategy:
Location1

Crude Swaps:
Notional volume (Bbl)

2022

5,055,012

NYMEX

Weighted average price ($/Bbl)

$

Natural Gas Swaps:
Notional volume (MMbtu)

$

Natural Gas Basis Swaps:
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62.94

2,490,000
$

18,462,502

NYMEX

Weighted average price ($/MMbtu)

2023

3.29

76.55
7,083,333

$

3.24

Notional volume (MMbtu)

6,750,009

NYMEX &

Weighted average price ($/MMbtu)

$

ROCKIES

Natural Gas Collars:
Notional volume (MMbtu)

3,180,000

(0.27)

$

(0.35)

5,800,000

NYMEX

1,266,667

Weighted average floor price ($/MMbtu)

$

2.98

$

3.11

Weighted average ceiling price ($/MMbtu)

$

3.74

$

4.00

_____________
1)

NYMEX refers to quoted prices on the New York Mercantile Exchange and ROCKIES refers to quoted CIG natural gas prices.

Below is a summary of the Company’s open interest rate swaps as of March 31, 2022 (in thousands except percentages):
Notional Principal Amount

Maturity Date

Interest Rate

$

75,000

June 25, 2024

0.46 %

$

25,000

June 25, 2024

0.45 %

$

25,000

June 25, 2024

0.36 %

$

25,000

June 25, 2024

0.36 %

$

25,000

June 25, 2024

0.22 %

$

25,000

June 25, 2024

0.22 %

$

25,000

June 25, 2024

0.23 %

Balance sheet presentation
Derivative instruments are reported at fair value on the condensed consolidated balance sheets as derivative instruments under current assets, noncurrent assets, current liabilities and non-current liabilities. The Company nets the fair value of derivative instruments by counterparty in the accompanying
condensed consolidated balance sheets where the financial right to offset exists. The following table presents the fair value of the derivative instruments on
a net basis as of March 31, 2022 and December 31, 2021(in thousands):
Asset Derivatives
(Successor)

(Successor)

(Successor)

March 31,

December 31,

March 31,

December 31,

2022

Commodity derivatives not designated as hedging instruments

$

Interest rate derivatives not designated as hedging instruments
Total derivatives not designated as hedging instruments

Liability Derivatives

(Successor)

2021

259

$

10,085
$

10,344

2022

—

229,973

$

229,973

3,328
$

3,328

2021

$

$

106,931

$

106,931

—

—

Gains and losses
Gains or losses resulting from changes in the fair values of the Company’s derivatives along with the gains or losses resulting from settlement of
derivatives are all included in gain (loss) on derivative instruments, net in the condensed consolidated statements of operations.
The following table presents gain (loss) on derivative instruments for the periods presented (in thousands):

Realized (loss) gain on derivative instruments

(Successor)

(Successor)

(Predecessor)

Three Months Ended
March 31, 2022

Period from
February 23, 2021
through March 31,
2021

Period from January
1, 2021, through
February 22, 2021

$
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(77,539)

$

(8,199)

$

(3,157)

Unrealized (loss) gain on derivative instruments

(116,025)
$

(Loss) gain on derivative instruments, net

(193,564)

23,080
$

(96,370)

14,881

$

(99,527)

The following table presents gross commodity derivative balances prior to applying netting adjustments and net balances as recorded in the
condensed consolidated balance sheets (in thousands):

Gross Amounts

Net Amounts
Presented in the
Balance Sheet2

Netting Adjustments1

March 31, 2022 (Successor)
Current commodity derivative assets

$

13

(13)

$

—

Non-current commodity derivative assets

$

315

(56)

$

259

Current commodity derivative liabilities

$

219,833

(13)

$

219,820

Non-current commodity derivative liabilities

$

10,209

(56)

$

10,153

Current commodity derivative assets

$

172

(172)

$

—

Non-current commodity derivative assets

$

523

(523)

$

—

Current commodity derivative liabilities

$

103,668

(173)

$

103,495

Non-current commodity derivative liabilities

$

3,958

(522)

$

3,436

December 31, 2021 (Successor)

_____________
1)

With all of the Company’s financial trading counterparties, there are agreements in place that allow for the financial right of offset for commodity derivative assets and commodity
derivative liabilities at settlement or in the event of a default under the agreements.

2)

There are no amounts of related financial collateral received or pledged.

The following table presents gross interest rate derivative balances prior to applying netting adjustments and net balances as recorded in the
condensed consolidated balance sheets (in thousands):

Gross Amounts

Net Amounts
Presented in the
Balance Sheet2

Netting Adjustments1

March 31, 2022 (Successor)
Current interest rate derivative assets

$

3,158

—

$

3,158

Non-current interest rate derivative assets

$

6,927

—

$

6,927

Current interest rate derivative liabilities

$

—

—

$

—

Non-current interest rate derivative liabilities

$

—

—

$

—

Current interest rate derivative assets

$

404

(178)

$

226

Non-current interest rate derivative assets

$

3,102

—

$

3,102

Current interest rate derivative liabilities

$

178

(178)

$

—

Non-current interest rate derivative liabilities

$

—

—

$

—

December 31, 2021 (Successor)

_____________
1)

With all of the Company’s financial trading counterparties, there are agreements in place that allow for the financial right of offset for interest rate derivative assets and interest rate
derivative liabilities at settlement or in the event of a default under the agreements.

2)

There are no amounts of related financial collateral received or pledged.

Netting for balance sheet presentation is performed by current and non-current classification. The Company does have amounts subject to
enforceable master netting arrangements that are not netted on the condensed consolidated balance sheets. As of March 31, 2022, amounts for
counterparties in a net asset position totaled $10.3 million and a net
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liability position totaled $230.0 million. As of December 31, 2021, amounts for counterparties in a net asset position totaled $3.3 million and a net liability
position totaled $106.9 million.
NOTE 6—Debt
On June 25, 2019, the Company entered into a Third Amended and Restated Credit Agreement with MUFG Union Bank, N.A. (formerly known
as Union Bank, N.A.), as administrative agent (“Administrative Agent”), and the lenders party thereto (“Lenders”) with respect to the Company’s revolving
credit facility in the maximum aggregate principal amount of $1.5 billion, with a sublimit for letters of credit issued thereunder of $20.0 million and no
swing line loans. The initial borrowing base on the revolving credit facility was $650 million; however, to reduce associated fees, the Company elected to a
commitment amount of $550 million. On August 23, 2019, the Company entered into Amendment No. 1 to the Third Amended and Restated Credit
Agreement, which allows the Company to purchase in cash up to an aggregate amount of $50.0 million of the 2021 Notes and/or 2025 Notes. On
November 15, 2019 the Company entered into Amendment No. 2 to the Third Amended and Restated Credit Agreement that increased the borrowing base
from $650 million to $700 million. However, to reduce associated fees, the Company elected a commitment amount of $630 million. On April 8, 2020 the
Company entered into Amendment No. 3 to the Third Amended and Restated Credit Agreement that, among other things, decreased the borrowing base
from $700 million to $600 million. On July 13, 2020, the Company entered into Amendment No. 4 to the Third Amended and Restated Credit Agreement
that allows the Company to incur second-lien, third-lien and unsecured debt in an aggregate principal amount of up to $375 million and, subject to the
aggregate maximum amount of $375 million and up to $175 million of new third lien notes the Company may issue to Preferred Investors in exchange of
Preferred Units. On September 29, 2020, the Company entered into Amendment No. 5 to the Third Amended and Restated Credit Agreement that, among
other things, decreased the borrowing base from $600 million to $485 million.
The revolving credit facility is secured by liens and security interests on substantially all of the Company’s properties and the properties of its
subsidiaries. The credit facility contains restrictive covenants that may limit the Company’s ability to (i) grant liens, (ii) incur additional debt, (iii) enter into
mergers, (iv) sell assets, (v) make distributions and redemptions, (vi) make certain acquisitions and investments, (vii) enter into transactions with affiliates,
(viii) hedge future production, and (ix) engage in certain other prohibited transactions without the prior consent of the lender.
The amount available to be borrowed on the Company’s revolving credit facility is subject to a borrowing base that is required to be redetermined
semi-annually and will be based on proved reserves reflected in the midyear and year end reserve reports as being attributable to the oil and natural gas
properties, the financial condition and projected financial condition of the Company, and other information deemed relevant by the Administrative Agent.
Additionally, at the request of (i) the Lenders or the Administrative Agent or (ii) the Company, the borrowing base may be redetermined, in each case one
additional time during any period between two scheduled redeterminations. As of March 31, 2022, the borrowing base under the revolving credit facility
was $485.0 million and there were $227.0 million of outstanding borrowings thereunder. As of December 31, 2021, the borrowing base under the revolving
credit facility was $485.0 million and there were $242.0 million of outstanding borrowings thereunder.
Outstanding principal amounts borrowed (and accrued but unpaid interest thereon) are required to be repaid in full on the maturity date (or earlier,
upon any acceleration of such obligations pursuant to the terms of the revolving credit facility), and interest will be payable quarterly for reference rate
loans and at the end of the applicable interest period for Eurodollar loans, or, if the applicable interest period is greater than six months, on the three month
anniversary of the first day of such interest period. The Company has a choice of borrowing at an adjusted Eurodollar rate or an adjusted reference rate.
Eurodollar loans bear interest at a rate per annum equal to an adjusted LIBOR rate (equal to a fraction (expressed as a decimal), the numerator of which is
the applicable LIBOR rate and the denominator of which is the number one minus the reserve percentages (expressed as a decimal) on such date at which
the Administrative Agent is required to maintain reserves according to the regulations of the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System) plus an
applicable margin ranging from 150 to 250 basis points, depending on the percentage of the borrowing base utilized. Reference rate loans bear interest at a
rate per annum equal to the greatest of (i) the Administrative Agent’s reference rate, (ii) the federal funds effective rate plus 50 basis points and (iii) the
one-month LIBOR rate plus 100 basis points, plus an applicable margin ranging from 50 to 150 basis points, depending on the percentage of the borrowing
base utilized. The Company may prepay any amounts borrowed prior to the maturity date without any premium or penalty other than the prepayment of
accrued interest and customary Eurodollar breakage costs.
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The revolving credit facility requires the Company to maintain, on a condensed consolidated basis with its subsidiaries, the following financial
ratios:
•

a current ratio, which is the ratio of: (i) the Company’s condensed consolidated current assets (including the aggregate unused
commitments under the revolving credit facility and joint interest billing suspense through March 30, 2021, but excluding restricted
cash and certain derivative assets) to (ii) the Company’s condensed consolidated current liabilities (excluding the current portion of longterm obligations under the revolving credit facility, certain derivative assets and the 2021 Notes through March 30, 2021), of not less than
1.0 to 1.0 as of the last day of each fiscal quarter; and

•

a maximum leverage ratio, which is the ratio of (i) the Company’s condensed consolidated total debt (excluding certain debt attributed to
hedging arrangements and obligations under the 2018 Preferred Units as long as they are not classified as debt) to (ii) the Company’s
condensed consolidated EBITDAX for the four fiscal quarter period most recently ended, not to exceed 3.5 to 1.0 as of the last day of
each fiscal quarter.

The revolving credit facility also contains customary events of default, including, without limitation, the failure to make payments, cross-default to
other material indebtedness, certain events related to bankruptcy or insolvency proceedings, and failure to comply with specified covenants. Upon an event
of default, the lender commitments under the revolving credit facility may be terminated and indebtedness thereunder declared immediately due and
payable.
On February 22, 2021, the Company completed a private offering of $235.0 million in aggregate principal amount of 12.0% senior secured notes
(the “2025 Secured Notes”) which resulted in net proceeds of approximately $222.7 million net of the initial purchasers discount of 2.5% of the aggregate
principal and offering expenses. The 2025 Secured Notes mature on September 1, 2025. Interest on the 2025 Secured Notes is payable on March 1 and
September 1 of each year with the first interest payment made on September 1, 2021. The net proceeds from the issuance of the 2025 Secured Notes along
with cash on hand of $36.8 million were deposited in an irrevocable trust on February 22, 2021 until March 3, 2021 when certain requirements in 2025
Secured Note agreement were satisfied. On March 3, 2021, the funds deposited in the irrevocable trust were used to fund the redemption of all remaining
outstanding principal of $251.5 million on the $300.0 million aggregate principal amount 9.0% senior notes due in 2021 issued on September 22, 2016
(“2021 Notes”). Further, in connection with the closing of the 2025 Secured Notes, on February 22, 2021 the Company exchanged all outstanding principal
of $75.0 million on the $75.0 million aggregate principal amount 8.5% senior notes due in 2025 issued on April 11, 2018 (“2025 Notes”) for additional
2025 Secured Notes of $76.875 million. The $1.875 million difference between the $76.875 million exchange price on the additional 2025 Secured Notes
and exchanged for the $75.0 million carrying value of the 2025 Notes was recorded to equity as part of the push down accounting adjustments as this is not
a transaction of the Predecessor and represents part of the initial basis of the Successor. The redemption of the 2021 Notes and exchange of the 2025 Notes
were accounted for as a debt extinguishment and therefore unamortized debt issuance costs of $1.4 million and $2.9 million on the 2021 Notes and 2025
Notes were adjusted to zero as part of the push down accounting adjustments. Please see Note 2—Basis of Presentation and Principles of Consolidation and
Recapitalization Transaction to our condensed consolidated financial statements for more information.
The Company is entitled to redeem up to 35% of the aggregate principal amount of the 2025 Secured Notes prior to March 1, 2023 with an
amount of cash not greater than the net proceeds that the Company could raise in certain equity offerings at a redemption price equal to 112.0% of the
principal amount of the 2025 Secured Notes being redeemed plus accrued and unpaid interest. The Company is also entitled to redeem all or a part of the
2025 Secured Notes prior to March 1, 2023 at a redemption price equal to 100.000% of the principal amount thereof, plus accrued and unpaid interest plus
the greater of (i) 1% of the principal amount of the 2025 Secured Notes or (ii) the present value of 106.0% of the principal amount of the 2025 Secured
Notes plus all required interest payments through March 23, 2023 (excluding accrued but unpaid interest through the redemption date) using a discount rate
on the redemption date equal to the treasury rate plus 50 basis points discounted to the redemption date on a semi-annual basis divided by the principal
amount of the 2025 Secured Notes. If the 2025 Secured Notes are redeemed on or after March 23, 2023, the Company may redeem some or all of the 2025
Secured Notes at a price equal to 106.0% of the principal amount if redeemed between March 1, 2023 and March 1, 2024, 103.0% of the principal amount
if redeemed between March 1, 2024 and March 1, 2025 and 100.00% of the principal amount if redeemed between April 2025 and thereafter, plus accrued
and unpaid interest. If the Company experiences a change of control, as defined in the note agreement in respect of the 2025
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Secured Notes, the Company will be required to offer to holders of the 2025 Secured Notes to repurchase their notes at 101.0% of the principal amount
thereof, plus accrued and unpaid interest, if any, to the date of purchase.
As of March 31, 2022 and December 31, 2021, the Company had $311.9 million, in principal outstanding on the senior notes with unamortized
discount and debt issuance costs of $10.4 million and $11.0 million, respectively, and accrued interest of $3.1 million and $12.5 million, respectively.
The Company incurred interest on long-term debt of $11.4 million, $5.9 million and $5.5 million for the three months ended March 31, 2022
(Successor), the period January 1, 2021 through February 22, 2021 (Predecessor), and the period February 23, 2021 through March 31, 2021 (Successor),
respectively, and capitalized interest of $2.1 million, $0.8 million and $0.5 million for the period the three months ended March 31, 2022 (Successor), the
period January 1, 2021 through February 22, 2021 (Predecessor), and the period February 23, 2021 through March 31, 2021 (Successor), respectively
As of March 31, 2022 and December 31, 2021, the Company was in compliance with all debt covenants.
Paycheck Protection Program Loan
On April 14, 2020, the Company entered into a loan agreement with PNC Bank N.A. as the lender of the Paycheck Protection Program of the
Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security Act (“CARES Act”) administered by U.S. Small Business Administration (“SBA”) and obtained a loan in
the amount of $3.3 million to help retain employees due to the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic. The Company’s Paycheck Protection Program loan
(“PPP Loan”) is fully forgivable if the Company meets certain requirements and receives formal approval, as defined by the CARES Act, subject to an
audit by the SBA. The $3.3 million PPP Loan was fully forgiven in May 2021 and was recorded as a reduction of general and administrative expense in the
condensed consolidated statement of operations.
NOTE 7 – Fair Value Measures
Commodity Derivative Instruments
The following summarizes the fair value of the Company’s derivative assets and liabilities, by input level within the fair-value hierarchy (in
thousands):
Level 1

Level 2

Level 3

Assets (liabilities) at March 31, 2022 (Successor):
Commodity derivatives

$

—

$

(229,714)

$

—

Interest rate derivatives

$

—

$

10,085

$

—

Commodity derivatives

$

—

$

(106,931)

$

—

Interest rate derivatives

$

—

$

3,328

$

—

Assets (liabilities) at December 31, 2021 (Successor):

The fair value of the Company’s commodity and interest rate derivatives are determined using industry standard models that considered various
assumptions including current market and contractual prices for the underlying instruments, implied volatility, time value, non-performance risk, as well as
other relevant economic measures. These are considered Level 2 inputs as substantially all of these inputs are observable in the marketplace throughout the
full term of the instrument and can be supported by observable data.
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No transfers between levels have occurred for the three months ended March 31, 2022 (Successor), the period January 1, 2021 through February
22, 2021 (Predecessor), and the period February 23, 2021 through March 31, 2021 (Successor), respectively.
Fair Value of Financial Instruments
The carrying values of the financial instruments included in current assets and current liabilities approximate fair value due to the short-term
maturities of these instruments.
The portion of the Company’s long-term debt related to its revolving credit facility approximates fair value due to the variable nature of related
interest rates. The Company has not elected to account for the portion of its debt related to its senior notes under the fair value option; however, the
Company has determined an estimate of the fair value based on measurements of trading activity and broker and/or dealer quotes, respectively, which are
published market prices, and therefore are Level 2 inputs. The table below presents these estimates of the fair value of the Company’s long-term debt (in
thousands):
Carrying Value

Estimated Fair Value

At March 31, 2022 (Successor):
Revolving credit facility

$

227,000

$

227,000

2025 Secured Notes (111.9% of par)1

$

301,474

$

348,926

$

242,000

$

242,000

$

300,883

$

328,404

At December 31, 2021 (Successor):
Revolving credit facility
1

2025 Secured Notes (105.3% of par)
_____________
1)

The carrying amount of the 2025 Secured Notes includes unamortized debt issuance costs and discounts of $10.4 million and $11.0 million as of March 31, 2022 and December 31, 2021,
respectively.

NOTE 8—Members’ Equity
On February 22, 2021, the Company completed the Recapitalization Transaction wherein all of the Company’s outstanding preferred and common
units, along with cash contributed by one of the common unitholders, were exchanged for 1,000,000 new authorized, issued and outstanding common units
(“Common Units”). Additional Common Units will be issued upon any exercise of common unit Warrants. The common unitholders are not required to
make any additional capital contributions to the Company or its subsidiaries, and distributions will be made to the Common Unitholders at the discretion of
the Company’s Board in proportion to each Common Unitholder’s ownership percentage in the Company at the time of distribution, as defined in the
Company’s Third Amended and Restated Limited Liability Agreement.
As part of the Recapitalization Transaction, the Company granted 41,667 freestanding common unit warrants at a strike price of $325.00 per
warrant to ACTOIL. The warrants are exercisable at the election of ACTOIL with cash or net common unit settled at any time before February 22, 2024,
upon the sale of all or substantially all of the assets of the Company or immediately prior to an initial public offering. The common unit warrants cannot be
net cash settled and are not contingently or mandatorily redeemable and therefore are equity classified.
NOTE 9—Preferred Units
On February 22, 2021, as part of the Recapitalization Transaction all 295,859 Preferred Units were exchanged for 800,000 Common Units at a
redemption value of approximately $400.0 million.
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The following table summarizes the activities for the Company’s Preferred Units (in thousands):
Beginning balance as of January 1, 2020 (Predecessor)

$

324,893

Accretion of preferred units

64,352

PIK dividends

10,755

Ending balance as of December 31, 2020 (Predecessor)

$

Recapitalization transaction

(400,000)
(400,000)

$

Ending balance as of December 31, 2021 (Successor)

—

NOTE 10—Related Party Transactions
Midstream Transactions
During the three months ended March 31, 2022 (Successor), and the periods from January 1, 2021 through February 22, 2021 (Predecessor),
February 23 through March 31, 2021 (Successor), the Company received $7.8 million, $4.1 million and $12.2 million, respectively, in revenue and incurred
$2.6 million, $2.2 million and $1.7 million in gathering and transportation fees, respectively, with a midstream company that is accounted for using the
equity method. Please see Note 3—Summary of Significant Accounting Policies to the Company’s audited consolidated year ended December 31, 2021
financial statements for more information regarding the investment in unconsolidated entity. During the three months ended March 31, 2022 (Successor)
and the period from February 23, 2021 through March 31, 2021 (Successor), the Company received $31.9 million and $9.3 million, respectively, in revenue
from a midstream company in which one of our members has an investment.
Due to/from Affiliates
As of December 31, 2021, there were amounts included in other assets, primarily related to the Broe Deferred Compensation Plan (“Broe DCP”)
in the amount of $4.7 million. In January 2022, the Company consented to the termination and distribution of the Broe DCP which resulted in full payment
of amounts held in the Broe DCP to the Company.
NOTE 11—Commitments and Contingencies
Volume Commitments
The Company has entered into firm sales agreements that require the Company to deliver minimum quantities of oil and natural gas to certain
third parties through 2029. If the Company is unable to fulfill all contractual obligations, the Company may be required to pay penalties or damages
pursuant to these agreements. Additionally, the Company has entered into agreements to purchase oil from certain third parties in 2021. If no deliveries
were made, the Company
would pay $96.5 million during the remainder of 2022, $74.4 million in 2023, $72.0 million in 2024, $58.6 million in 2025, $51.6 million in 2026 and
$74.4 million thereafter. As of March 31, 2022, the Company anticipates meeting all delivery commitments.
Pipeline Connections
Well connection costs include costs the Company is liable for to connect production from the Company’s wells to existing pipelines. As of March
31, 2022, there are no unpaid well connection costs for wells that have commenced construction prior to March 31, 2022.
Other Commitments
The other balance includes commitments for debt, operating rent and surface use agreement commitments. If the Company is unable to fulfill all
contractual obligations, the Company may be required to pay penalties or damages pursuant to these agreements of $3.3 million during the remainder of
2022, $2.7 million in 2023, $1.6 million in 2024, $1.0 million in 2025, $1.0 million in 2026 and $0.7 million thereafter.
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The Company has secured insurance policies including general property and liability, among others, to protect the Company against the risk of a
release of hydrocarbons into the atmosphere due to excess pressure built up in the well and also environmental liability insurance to provide protection in
the event of leaks in its pipes, tanks, or pits, which could potentially create environmental contamination.
Litigation
The Company is party to ongoing legal proceedings in the ordinary course of business. While the outcome of these proceedings cannot be
predicted with certainty, the Company does not believe the results of these proceedings, individually or in the aggregate, will have a material adverse effect
on the Company's business, financial condition, results of operations or liquidity.
General
The Company is subject to contingent liabilities with respect to existing or potential claims, lawsuits, and other proceedings, including those
involving environmental, tax and other matters. The Company records liabilities when it is probable that future costs will be incurred, and such costs can be
reasonably estimated. Such liabilities are based on developments to date and the Company’s estimates of the outcomes of these matters and its experience
in contesting, litigating and settling other matters. As the scope of the liabilities becomes better defined, there will be changes in the estimates of future
costs, which management currently believes will not have a material effect on the Company’s financial position, results of operations or cash flows.
NOTE 12—Significant Customers and Other Concentrations
Significant Customers
During the three months ended March 31, 2022 (Successor) and periods from January 1, 2021 through February 22, 2021 (Predecessor), February
23, 2021 through March 31, 2021 (Successor), presented in the tables below, the Company’s revenues consisted of certain customers whose purchases
exceeded 10% of the total oil, natural gas and NGL revenues of the Company. The Company believes that the loss of a single purchaser would not
materially affect the Company’s business because there are numerous other purchasers in the area in which the Company sells production.
(Successor)

(Successor)

(Predecessor)

For the three months ended March
31, 2022

Period from February 23, 2021
through March 31, 2021

Period from January 1, 2021 through
February 22, 2021

Customer A

34 %

18 %

31 %

Customer B

14 %

8%

13 %

Customer C

18 %

26 %

11 %

Customer D

12 %

8%

9%

Customer E

11 %

16 %

9%

Customer F

3%

8%

18 %

Customer G

3%

12 %

4%

95 %

96 %

95 %

Total
Concentration of Market Risk

The future results of the Company’s oil and natural gas operations will be affected by the market prices of oil and natural gas. The availability of a
ready market for crude oil and natural gas in the future will depend on numerous factors beyond the control of the Company, including weather, imports,
marketing of competitive fuels, proximity and capacity of oil and natural gas pipelines and other transportation facilities, any oversupply or undersupply of
oil and natural gas, the regulatory environment, the economic environment, and other regional and political events, none of which can be predicted with
any certainty.
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The Company operates in the exploration, development, and production phases of the oil and natural gas industry. Its receivables include amounts
due from purchasers of oil and natural gas production and amounts due from joint interest owners for its respective portions of operating expense and
exploration and development costs. While certain of these customers and joint interest owners are affected by periodic downturns in the economy in
general or in its specific segment of the natural gas or oil industry, the Company believes its level of credit related losses due to such economic fluctuations
has been and will continue to be immaterial to the Company’s condensed consolidated results of operations and cash flows in the long term. Trade
receivables are generally not collateralized.
NOTE 13—Employee Benefit Plan
The Company currently maintains a retirement plan intended to provide benefits under section 401(k) of the Internal Revenue Code, under which
employees are allowed to contribute portions of their compensation to a tax-qualified retirement account. In accordance with the 401(k) plan, the Company
provides matching contributions equal to 50% of the first 6% of employees’ eligible compensation contributed to the plan. As of August 1, 2021 the plan
was amended and the Company is now providing matching contributions equal to 100% of the first 6% of employees’ eligible compensation contributed to
the plan. The Company contributed $0.4 million, $0.1 million and $0.1 million during the three months ended March 31, 2022, for the period January 1,
2021 through February 22, 2021 (Predecessor), and for the period February 23, 2021 through March 31, 2021 (Successor).
NOTE 14—Recently Issued and Adopted Accounting Pronouncements
In June 2016, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update 2016-13, Financial Instruments—Credit Losses (Topic 326) (“ASU 2016-13”). ASU
2016-13 affects trade receivables, financial assets and certain other instruments that are not measured at fair value through net income. This standard will
replace the currently required incurred loss approach with an expected loss model for instruments measured at amortized cost. The standard is effective for
fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2022, including interim periods within those fiscal years. The Company is currently evaluating the impact of
adoption of ASU 2016-13 on its condensed consolidated financial statements.
In February 2016, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update 2016-02, Leases (Topic 842) (“ASU 2016-02”). The new standard requires
substantially all leases be recognized by lessees on their balance sheet as a right-of-use asset and corresponding lease liability, including today’s operating
leases. The standard is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2021, and interim periods within fiscal years beginning after December 15,
2022, with early adoption permitted. The FASB subsequently issued ASU 2018-01, which provided additional implementation guidance. The Company is
currently evaluating the impact of ASU 2016-02 on its condensed consolidated financial statements and related disclosures. ASU 2016-02 does not apply to
mineral leases.
NOTE 15—Subsequent Events
The Company has evaluated all subsequent events through the date the financial statements are available to be issued of July 13, 2022, for items
that should potentially be recognized or disclosed in these financial statements.
On April 20, 2022, the Company conditionally called for redemption of its 2025 Secured Notes for all of the remaining outstanding principal
amount of $311.9 million, and a redemption premium of 13.167%, or $41.1 million, subject to the closing of the PDC Energy, Inc. (“PDC”) acquisition for
the membership interests of the Company prior to the scheduled redemption date of May 20, 2022.
On April 26, 2022, the Company merged GWPM I with and into a newly formed wholly owned subsidiary of GWPMH, GWP Midstream
HoldCo, LLC (“GMH”) and immediately distributed the membership interests in this entity to the Company’s unitholders on a pro rata basis (the “SpinOff”). As a result of the merger with GWPM I, GMH indirectly owns a 10% equity interest in a midstream company.
As a result of the Spin-Off of GMH on April 26, 2022, the Investment in Unconsolidated Entity balance of approximately $18.9 million was
reduced to zero with an offsetting reduction of $18.9 million to Member’s Equity as the Company no longer holds ownership in GMH.
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On May 3, 2022, the Company terminated all of its $225 million notional amount of interest rate swaps (Please see Note 5) and received net cash
proceeds of approximately $11.8 million on the settlement date of the terminations, May 5, 2022.
On May 6, 2022, PDC acquired all of the membership interests of the Company directly from the common unitholders in a transaction valued at
approximately $1.7 billion. Upon closing, the common unit holders of the Company received $477.0 million in cash, net of estimated transaction expenses
of $15.5 million and net of $50.0 million of proceeds that are being held in escrow to cover any potential indemnity claims. Of the $477.0 million of net
cash proceeds, $33.5 million was immediately contributed to GWH to fund the costs of managing GWH, to make release payments and to pay incentiverelated compensation costs that were contingent upon the acquisition closing (collectively, the “Contingent Employee Costs”). All Contingent Employee
Costs will be incurred and paid by GMH, and no liability for Contingent Employee Costs were assumed by PDC upon closing. Of the total $33.5 million of
cash contributed to GMH approximately $31.5 million relates to Contingent Employee Costs. The common unitholders also received 4,007,018 shares of
PDC common stock. The $50.0 million of indemnity escrow is scheduled to be paid out to the Company’s common unitholders in four quarterly payments
through May 2023 after being reduced for any indemnity claims against the escrow.
In addition, upon closing, the Company’s revolving credit facility was terminated and the outstanding borrowings under the revolving credit
facility of $235.0 million were paid off by PDC. All liens and security interests on the Company’s properties were released upon the pay-off of the
revolving credit facility.
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EXHIBIT 99.3
PDC ENERGY, INC.
UNAUDITED PRO FORMA CONDENSED COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
On May 6, 2022, PDC Energy, Inc. (“PDC”) completed the acquisition of Great Western Petroleum, LLC (“Great Western”) for approximately
$1.4 billion, inclusive of Great Western’s net debt. Great Western is an independent oil and gas company focused on the exploration, production and
development of crude oil and natural gas in Colorado. The consideration paid was $542.5 million in cash and approximately 4.0 million shares of PDC
common stock, valued at $293.3 million on the acquisition date. In addition, the Company paid off the Great Western secured credit facility totaling $235.8
million and irrevocably deposited $361.2 million on Great Western’s behalf to pay and discharge on May 20, 2022 Great Western’s 12% senior secured
notes due 2025, inclusive of unpaid accrued interest and a premium for early termination.
The following unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial statements (the “pro forma financial statements”) present the historical
consolidated financial statements of PDC and Great Western, adjusted to give effect to the acquisition. PDC and Great Western account for crude oil and
natural gas properties under the successful efforts method of accounting. The unaudited pro forma condensed combined statements of operations (the “pro
forma statements of operations”) for the three months ended March 31, 2022 and the year ended December 31, 2021 combine the historical consolidated
statements of operations of PDC and Great Western, giving effect to the acquisition and related transactions as if they had been consummated on January 1,
2021, the beginning of the earliest period presented. The unaudited pro forma condensed combined balance sheet (the “pro forma balance sheet”) combines
the historical consolidated balance sheets of PDC and Great Western as of March 31, 2022, giving effect to the acquisition as if it had been consummated
on March 31, 2022. The pro forma financial statements contain certain reclassification adjustments to conform the historical Great Western financial
statement presentation to PDC’s financial statement presentation.
The pro forma financial statements reflect the following acquisition-related adjustments, based on available information and certain assumptions
that PDC believes are reasonable:
•
•
•
•
•

Preliminary purchase price allocation reflecting PDC’s acquisition of Great Western, which was accounted for using the acquisition method of
accounting, with PDC identified as the acquirer;
adjustments to conform the classification of certain assets and liabilities in Great Western’s historical balance sheet to PDC’s classification for
similar assets and liabilities;
adjustments to conform the classification of revenue and expenses in Great Western’s historical statements of operations to PDC’s classification
for similar revenue and expenses;
the assumption of liabilities for transaction-related expenses; and
estimated tax impact of pro forma adjustments.

As of the date of this filing, PDC has not finalized a detailed valuation study necessary to arrive at the required final estimates of the fair value of
the Great Western assets acquired and the liabilities assumed and the related allocations of purchase price nor has it identified all adjustments necessary to
conform Great Western’s accounting policies to PDC’s accounting policies. A final determination of the fair value of Great Western’s assets and liabilities
will be based on the actual net tangible and intangible assets and liabilities that exist as of the closing date of the acquisition. As a result, the pro forma
adjustments are preliminary and subject to change as additional information becomes available and additional analysis is performed. The preliminary pro
forma adjustments have been made solely for the purpose of providing the unaudited pro forma financial statements presented below. PDC estimated the
fair value of Great Western’s assets and liabilities based upon a preliminary valuation, due diligence and internal financial information of Great Western.
Any increases or decreases in the fair value of assets acquired and liabilities assumed upon completion of the final valuation will result in adjustments to
the pro forma balance sheet and/or statements of operations. The final purchase price allocation may be materially different than that reflected in the pro
forma purchase price allocation presented herein.
Assumptions and estimates underlying the adjustments to the pro forma financial statements (the “pro forma adjustments”) are described in the
accompanying notes. The historical consolidated financial statements include pro forma adjustments that give effect to the acquisition, are factually
supportable and, with respect to the pro forma statements of operations, are expected to have a continuing impact on the combined results of PDC and
Great Western following the acquisition. The pro forma financial statements have been presented for illustrative purposes only and are not necessarily
indicative of the operating results and financial position that would have been achieved had the acquisition occurred on the dates indicated. Further, the pro
forma financial statements do not purport to project the future operating results or financial position of the combined company following the acquisition.
The pro forma financial statements, although helpful in illustrating the financial characteristics of the combined company under one set of
assumptions, do not reflect the benefits of expected cost savings (or associated costs to achieve such
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savings), opportunities to earn additional revenue or other factors that may result as a consequence of the acquisition and, accordingly, do not attempt to
predict or suggest future results. Specifically, the pro forma combined statements of operations exclude projected synergies expected to be achieved as a
result of the acquisition, nor do they include any associated costs that may be required to be incurred to achieve the identified synergies. The pro forma
financial statements do not reflect the effect of any regulatory or other actions that may impact the results of the combined company following the
acquisition.
The pro forma financial statements have been developed from and should be read in conjunction with:
•
•
•
•
•

the accompanying notes to the pro forma financial statements;
the audited consolidated financial statements of PDC for the year ended December 31, 2021, included in PDC’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for
the year ended December 31, 2021 and incorporated by reference into this document;
the unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements of PDC for the three months ended March 31, 2022, included in PDC’s Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended March 31, 2022 and incorporated by reference into this document;
the audited consolidated financial statements of Great Western as of December 31, 2021 (Successor) and for the period January 1, 2021 through
February 22, 2021 (Predecessor), and the period February 23, 2021 through December 31, 2021 (Successor), filed herein; and
the unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements of Great Western as of and for the three months ended March 31, 2022 (Successor),
filed herein.
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PDC ENERGY, INC.
Pro Forma Condensed Combined Balance Sheet
(unaudited; in thousands)
March 31, 2022
Great Western
Historical

PDC Historical
Assets
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable, net

$

Fair value of derivatives
Prepaid expenses and other current assets
Total current assets
Properties and equipment, net
Investment in unconsolidated entity
Fair value of derivatives
Restricted cash
Other assets
Total Assets
Liabilities and Stockholders' Equity
Liabilities
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable

171,157
537,056

$

Reclassification
Adjustments (a)

38,581
156,443

$

— $
(4,524)

13,158
12,191

3,158
15,516

618
(8,247)

733,562
4,886,264

213,698
1,542,462
18,906
7,186
8,130
5,562

(12,153)
(3,000)
—
102
(8,130)
16,377

19,956
91,582

Pro Forma
Adjustments

(189,554) (c) $
(1,967) (c)
(819) (b)
—
—
(192,340)
556,500 (c)
(18,906) (d)
—
—
1,396 (c)

$

5,731,364

$

1,795,944

$

(6,804) $

$

192,268

$

34,587

$

87,315

Accrued liabilities
Production tax liability
Fair value of derivatives
Funds held for distribution

$

13,451
(282)
—
—
—
1,107
(537)
(3,898)
21,986
643
—
—

(c) $
(b)

327,339

18,251
77,130

—
—

3,898
9,756

507
5,733

(507)
(5,733)

1,275,282
942,565

549,284
301,474

(6,906)
—

Credit facility
Fair value of derivatives
Asset retirement obligations
Deferred income taxes

234,284
123,856
29,983

227,000
10,153
4,826
—

—
102
—
—

Production tax liability
Other liabilities

360,643

104,013
2,429

(104,013)
104,013

32,470
(301,474)
950,000
(227,000)
—
12,756
48,299
(858)
—
3,841

2,966,613

1,199,179

(6,804)

518,034

957

—
507,500

—
—

—
89,265

—
—

(7,033)

—

—

40
(488,594)
(18,906)
293,274
(89,265)
153,195
(21,128)
—

2,764,751

596,765

—

(171,384)

(6,804) $

346,650

Total liabilities

742,767
6,982,226
—
27,244
—
114,917
7,867,154

(248,918)
—
618
146,665

Total current liabilities
Long-term debt

16,934
19,460

$

248,918
39,719
219,820
—

Other liabilities
Asset retirement obligations

20,184
686,189

346,650

112,348
572,636
302,649

Accrued interest payable
Other accrued expenses

PDC Pro Forma
Combined

—
152,067
793,074
449,884

(c)
(b)
(c)
(e)
(c)

18,251
109,515
—
—
1,850,130
1,892,565

(c)
(c)
(c)

—
244,539
141,438
77,424

(c)
(c)
(e)

—
470,926

(c)

4,677,022

Commitments and contingent liabilities
Stockholders’ equity
(c)

Common shares
Members’ equity
Additional paid-in capital
Retained earnings (accumulated deficit)

3,052,741
(281,914)

Treasury shares
Total stockholders’ equity
Total Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity

$

5,731,364

$

1,795,944
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$

997
—

(c)
(d)
(c)
(c)
(f)
(e)

3,346,015
(149,847)

(7,033)
3,190,132
$

7,867,154

PDC ENERGY, INC.
Pro Forma Condensed Combined Statement of Operations
(unaudited; in thousands, except per share data)
Three Months Ended March 31, 2022
PDC
Historical
Revenues
Crude oil, natural gas and NGLs sales
Commodity price risk management gain (loss), net
Other income

$

Total revenues
Costs, expenses and other
Lease operating expenses
Production taxes
Transportation, gathering and processing expenses
Exploration, geologic and geophysical expense
General and administrative expense
Depreciation, depletion and amortization
Accretion of asset retirement obligations
Impairment of crude oil and natural gas properties
(Gain) loss on sale of properties and equipment
Total costs, expenses and other

Great Western
Historical

882,378 $
(568,055)
2,125

236,100
—
—

Reclassification
Adjustments (a)
$

Pro Forma
Adjustments

PDC Pro Forma
Combined

— $
(200,201)
—

—
—
—

$

1,118,478
(768,256)
2,125

316,448

236,100

(200,201)

—

352,347

54,156
62,916
27,971
253
34,107
151,055
2,987
943
(125)

12,845
19,218
2,538
334
9,210
43,386
—
—
—

—
—
—
(330)
(408)
(286)
286
330
—

—
—
—
—
—
14,544
136
—

67,001
82,134
30,509
257
42,909
208,699
3,409
1,273
(125)

(g)
(h)

334,263

87,531

(408)

14,680

436,066

Income (loss) from operations
(Loss) gain on derivative instruments, net
Interest expense, net
Other (expense) income

(17,815)
—
(12,945)
—

148,569
(193,564)
(10,250)
408

(199,793)
193,564
—
6,229

(14,680)
—
2,975
—

(83,719)
—
(20,220)
6,637

Income (loss) before income taxes
Income tax (expense) benefit

(30,760)
(1,200)

(54,837)
—

—
—

(11,705)
(2,139)
(456)

$

(31,960) $

(54,837) $

—

Basic

$

Diluted

$

Net income (loss)

$

(i)

(97,302)
(3,795)

(k)
(j)

(14,300)

$

(101,097)

(0.33)

$

(1.01)

(0.33)

$

(1.01)

Loss per share:

Weighted average common shares outstanding:
Basic

96,279

4,007

(l)

100,286

Diluted

96,279

4,007

(l)

100,286
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PDC ENERGY, INC.
Pro Forma Condensed Combined Statement of Operations
(unaudited; in thousands, except per share data)
Year Ended December 31, 2021
PDC
Historical
Revenues
Crude oil, natural gas and NGLs sales
Commodity price risk management gain (loss), net
Other income

$

Total revenues
Costs, expenses and other
Lease operating expenses
Production taxes
Transportation, gathering and processing expenses
Exploration, geologic and geophysical expense
General and administrative expense
Depreciation, depletion and amortization
Accretion of asset retirement obligations
Impairment of crude oil and natural gas properties
(Gain) loss on sale of properties and equipment
Other expenses
Total costs, expenses and other

Great Western
Historical

2,552,558 $
(701,456)
4,808

706,630
—
—

1,855,910

Reclassification
Adjustments (a)
$

Pro Forma
Adjustments

PDC Pro Forma
Combined

— $
(285,077)
—

—
—
—

$

706,630

(285,077)

—

2,277,463

180,659
165,209
100,403
1,064
127,733
635,184
12,086
402
(912)
2,490

44,004
60,779
10,858
4,705
23,394
173,278
—
—
—
865

—
—
—
(4,467)
(1,320)
(1,430)
1,430
4,467
—
—

—
—
—
—
21,986
69,039
181
—
—
—

224,663
225,988
111,261
1,302
171,793
876,071
13,697
4,869
(912)
3,355

(e)
(m)
(n)

3,259,188
(986,533)
4,808

1,224,318

317,883

(1,320)

91,206

1,632,087

Income (loss) from operations
(Loss) gain on derivative instruments, net
Interest expense, net
Gain on bargain purchase
Other (expense) income

631,592
—
(82,698)
—
—

388,747
(281,657)
(45,187)
—
1,195

(283,757)
281,657
—
—
2,100

(91,206)
—
14,163
153,195
125

(o)
(f)
(d)

645,376
—
(113,722)
153,195
3,420

Income (loss) before income taxes
Income tax (expense) benefit

548,894
(26,583)

63,098
—

—
—

76,277
(3,029)
(3,661)

(p)
(q)

$

522,311

Basic

$

Diluted

$

Net income (loss)

$

63,098

$

—

$

69,587

688,269
(33,273)
$

654,996

5.30

$

6.39

5.22

$

6.29

Earnings per share:

Weighted average common shares outstanding:
Basic
Diluted

98,546

4,007

(r)

102,553

100,154

4,007

(r)

104,161
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Note 1 - Basis of Presentation
The following pro forma financial statements present the historical consolidated financial statements of PDC and Great Western, adjusted to give
effect to the acquisition and related transactions. The pro forma balance sheet as of March 31, 2022 is derived from the historical condensed consolidated
balance sheets of PDC and Great Western as of March 31, 2022. The pro forma statement of operations for the three months ended March 31, 2022 is
derived from the historical condensed consolidated statements of operations of PDC and Great Western for the three months ended March 31, 2022. The
pro forma statement of operations for the year ended December 31, 2021 is derived from the historical consolidated statements of operations of PDC and
Great Western for the year ended December 31, 2021.
The pro forma balance sheet gives effect to the acquisition of Great Western as if the transaction had occurred on March 31, 2022. The pro forma
statements of operations give effect to the acquisition of Great Western and the issuance of PDC’s common shares as if the transaction had occurred on
January 1, 2021. The transactions and the related adjustments are described in the accompanying notes to the financial statements. In the opinion of PDC’s
management, all material adjustments have been made that are necessary to present fairly, in accordance with Article 11 of Regulation S-X of the Securities
and Exchange Commission (“SEC”), the pro forma financial statements.
The pro forma balance sheet and statements of operations are presented for illustrative purposes only and do not purport to be indicative of the
results of operations that would actually have occurred if the transaction described had occurred as presented in such statements or that may be obtained in
the future.
The pro forma balance sheet and statements of operations should be read in conjunction with PDC’s historical consolidated financial statements
and the notes thereto included in its Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2021 and Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the
quarterly period ended March 31, 2022 as well as Great Western’s historical consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2021 and
condensed consolidated financial statements for the three months ended March 31, 2022.
The Great Western historical statement of operations for the year ended December 31, 2021 combines the periods before (“Predecessor”) and after
(“Successor”) the Great Western’s recapitalization completed on February 22, 2021 where all of Great Western’s outstanding preferred units and common
members’ equity interests, along with cash contributed by one of the common members, were exchanged for new common units.
Note 2 - Preliminary Acquisition Accounting
The acquisition of Great Western is accounted for under the acquisition method of accounting for business combinations in accordance with
Accounting Standards Codification 805 - Business Combinations (“ASC 805”), with PDC being treated as the accounting acquirer. Accordingly, PDC
conducted a preliminary assessment of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed at their estimated fair values, while transaction and integration costs
associated with the acquisition are expensed as incurred. Any excess fair value of assets acquired and liabilities assumed beyond the consideration
transferred or paid in a business combination is recognized as a bargain purchase gain. PDC’s estimate, as of the date of this Form 8-K/A, indicates the fair
value of the net assets acquired and liabilities assumed is greater than the purchase price and the excess amount was recognized as a bargain purchase gain
on the pro forma condensed combined statement of operations for the year ended December 31, 2021. Due to the pro forma financial statements being
prepared based on preliminary estimates of fair value of the net assets acquired and balances as of March 31, 2022, the final purchase allocation and the
effect on our financial position and results of operations may differ significantly from the pro forma amounts included herein.
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The following presents the preliminary estimated purchase price allocation of the consideration transferred and the net assets acquired in the
acquisition:
(in thousands, except share and per
share data)

Consideration:
Cash
Retirement of Great Western’s credit facility
Extinguishment of Great Western’s secured senior notes
Total cash consideration

$

Common stock issued
Fair value of PDC common stock on May 6, 2022
Total fair value of common stock issued
Total consideration
Assets acquired:
Current assets
Properties and equipment, net
Other assets
Total assets acquired

$

4,007,018
73.20
293,314

$

1,432,867

$

199,577
2,095,962
30,623
2,326,162

$

Liabilities assumed:
Current liabilities
Fair value of derivatives
Asset retirement obligations
Deferred tax liabilities
Other liabilities
Total liabilities assumed

542,500
235,822
361,231
1,139,553

$

(553,682)
(10,255)
(17,582)
(48,299)
(110,282)
(740,100)

Total identifiable net assets acquired
Gain on bargain purchase

$

Purchase price consideration

$

1,586,062
153,195
1,432,867

The preliminary estimated fair value of properties and equipment was measured using valuation techniques that convert future cash flows to a
single discounted amount. Significant inputs to the valuation of properties and equipment include estimates of crude oil and natural gas reserves, future
operating and development costs, future commodity prices, estimated future cash flows and a market-based weighted average cost of capital rate. This
preliminary determination is subject to further assessment and adjustments pending additional information sharing between the parties, more detailed thirdparty appraisals, and other potential adjustments.

Note 3 - Pro Forma Adjustments

The pro forma financial statements have been adjusted to reflect reclassifications of Great Western’s financial statements to conform to PDC’s
financial statement presentation, adjustments to historical book values of Great Western to their preliminary estimated fair values in accordance with the
acquisition method of accounting, the closing price paid by PDC to the owners of Great Western, the extinguishment of Great Western’s debt, estimated
direct acquisition costs, and estimated tax impact of pro forma adjustments. These adjustments include the following:
(a)

The following reclassifications were made as a result of the acquisition to conform to PDC’s presentation:
Pro Forma Balance Sheet at March 31, 2022:
• Reclassification of approximately $7.5 million for Great Western’s Accounts Receivable to Accounts Payable.
• Reclassification of approximately $7.4 million for Great Western’s Prepaid expenses and other current assets to Other assets - noncurrent.
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•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Reclassification of approximately $0.6 million for Great Western’s Fair value of derivatives - current liability and $0.1 million Fair value of
derivatives- noncurrent liability to Fair value of derivatives - current assets and Fair value of derivative - noncurrent assets, respectively.
Reclassification of approximately $3.0 million for Great Western’s Properties and equipment to Accounts Receivable.
Reclassification of $0.8 million for Great Western’s Prepaid expenses and other current assets to Other assets.
Reclassification of approximately $146.7 million of Great Western’s revenue payable to owners from Accrued liabilities to Funds Held
Distribution.
Reclassification of approximately $94.8 million of Great Western’s Accrued liabilities to Accounts payable.
Reclassification of approximately $3.9 million of Great Western’s Accrued liabilities to Accrued interest payable.
Reclassification of approximately $3.5 million of Great Western’s Accrued liabilities to Other accrued expenses.
Reclassification of balance sheet line items that are less than 5 percent of the applicable totals for Great Western’s Restricted cash, Asset
retirement obligations (current) and Production tax liability into the respective “Other” category line items.

Pro Forma Statements of Operations for the three months ended March 31, 2022:
• Reclassification of approximately $200.2 million of Great Western’s (Loss) gain on derivative instruments, net to Commodity price risk
management (loss), net.
• Reclassification of approximately $0.3 million of Great Western’s Depreciation, depletion and amortization (“DD&A”) to Accretion of asset
retirement obligations.
• Reclassification of approximately $0.3 million of Great Western’s Exploration expense to Impairment of crude oil and natural gas
properties.
• Reclassification of approximately $6.6 million of Great Western’s (Loss) gain on derivative instruments, net to Other (expense) income.
• Reclassification of approximately $0.4 million of Great Western’s Other (expense) income to General and administrative expense.
Pro Forma Statements of Operations for the year ended December 31, 2021:
• Reclassification of approximately $285.1 million of Great Western’s (Loss) gain on derivative instruments, net to Commodity price risk
management (loss), net.
• Reclassification of approximately $1.4 million of Great Western’s DD&A to Accretion of asset retirement obligations.
• Reclassification of approximately $4.5 million of Great Western’s Exploration expense to Impairment of crude oil and natural gas
properties.
• Reclassification of approximately $3.4 million of Great Western’s (Loss) gain on derivative instruments, net to Other (expense) income.
• Reclassification of approximately $1.3 million of Great Western’s Other (expense) income to General and administrative expense.
The unaudited pro forma financial statements reflects the following adjustments:
Pro Forma Balance Sheet at March 31, 2022:
(b) Reflects the elimination of intercompany balances between PDC and Great Western related to joint-interest in certain wells.
(c) Reflects preliminary allocation of the estimated fair value of consideration transferred, the elimination of Great Western's historical equity balances
in accordance with the acquisition method of accounting, $950 million of additional borrowings under PDC’s credit facility for the cash
consideration of the purchase price, payment to extinguish Great Western’s senior secured notes and outstanding revolving credit facility. See Note
2 - Preliminary Acquisition Accounting for details of preliminary purchase price allocation.
(d) Reflects the elimination of Great Western’s investment in an unconsolidated entity and related income recognized for the year ended December 31,
2021, which was not acquired by PDC as part of the acquisition.
(e) Reflects the impact of estimated transaction costs related to the acquisition, including advisory services, banking, legal, accounting and fees that
are not capitalized as part of the transaction. The costs are not reflected in the historical March 31, 2022 balance sheets of PDC and Great Western,
but are reflected in the pro forma balance sheet as increases of approximately $9.1 million and $12.9 million to Other accrued expenses,
respectively. We recognized $0.9 million deferred tax relating to the total transaction cost resulting to decrease in Deferred income taxes, and $21.1
million increase to Accumulated Deficit, as they will be expensed by PDC or Great Western when incurred. The aggregate transaction cost of $22.0
million was reflected to the pro forma statement of operations for the year ended December 31, 2021.
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(f)

Reflects the bargain purchase gain due to the fair value of the net assets and liabilities acquired being greater than the purchase price. The purchase
price has been allocated to the acquired assets and assumed liabilities at fair values. The remaining $153.2 million, net of related income taxes of
$48.3 million, of allocated fair value in excess of the purchase price was recognized as a Gain on bargain purchase on the pro forma condensed
combined statement of operations for the year ended December 31, 2021 and as adjustment to Retained Earnings on the condensed combined
balance sheet as of March 31, 2022.

Pro Forma Statements of Operations for the three months ended March 31, 2022:
(g) DD&A was calculated using the unit-of-production method under the successful efforts method of accounting and adjustments were made for (1)
the increase in DD&A reflecting the relative fair values and production volumes attributable Great Western’s properties and (2) the revision to the
DD&A rate reflecting the reserve volumes acquired.
(h) Reflects approximately $0.1 million adjustment of Accretion of asset retirement obligations to conform assumptions for economic lives and
reclamation costs for plugged and abandoned wells with those of PDC for the three months ended March 31, 2022.
(i) The following adjustments were made to reflect pro forma changes to Interest expense for the three months ended March 31, 2022:
• Approximately $2.4 million decrease related to the elimination of interest and amortization of deferred issuance costs on Great Western’s
revolving credit facility which was extinguished at the acquisition date.
• Approximately $9.9 million decrease related to the elimination of interest and discount amortization on Great Western’s secured senior notes
which were extinguished at the acquisition date.
• Approximately $9.3 million increase related to the estimated interest expense on $950 million borrowings from PDC’s credit facility to
finance the acquisition of Great Western. The interest rate assumed for purposes of preparing this pro forma financial information is 3.9
percent. This rate is the weighted average interest rate of PDC’s credit facility as of June 30, 2022. A 1/8 of a percentage point increase or
decrease in the interest rate used would result in a change in the interest expense of approximately $1.2 million for the three months ended
March 31, 2022.
(j) Reflects tax effect of the adjustments above at PDC’s effective tax rate of 3.9 percent for the three months ended March 31, 2022. PDC’s effective
tax rate differs from the amount that would be provided by applying the statutory U.S. federal income rate of 21 percent due to the valuation
allowance against our deferred income tax assets in effect as of March 31, 2022.
(k) Reflects income tax expense relating to Great Western’s historical pre-tax income applying PDC’s effective tax rate for the three months ended
March 31, 2022. Great Western was a limited liability company and not subject to entity-level federal income taxation.
(l) Reflects impact of the 4,007,018 PDC shares issued to owners of Great Western upon completion of the acquisition.
Pro Forma Statements of Operations for the year ended December 31, 2021:
(m) DD&A was calculated using the unit-of-production method under the successful efforts method of accounting and adjustments were made for (1)
the increase in DD&A reflecting the relative fair values and production volumes attributable Great Western’s properties and (2) the revision to the
DD&A rate reflecting the reserve volumes acquired.
(n) Reflects approximately $0.2 million adjustment of Accretion of asset retirement obligations to conform assumptions for economic lives and
reclamation costs for plugged and abandoned wells with those of PDC for the year ended December 31, 2021.
(o) The following adjustments were made to reflect pro forma changes to Interest expense for the year ended December 31, 2021:
• Approximately $12.1 million decrease related to the elimination of interest and amortization of deferred issuance costs on Great Western’s
revolving credit facility which was extinguished at the acquisition date.
• Approximately $39.4 million decrease related to the elimination of interest and discount amortization on Great Western's secured senior
notes which were extinguished at the acquisition date.
• Approximately $37.3 million increase related to the estimated interest expense on $950 million borrowings from PDC’s credit facility to
finance the acquisition of Great Western. The interest rate assumed for purposes of preparing this pro forma financial information is 3.9
percent. This rate is weighted average interest rate of PDC’s credit facility as of June 30, 2022. A 1/8 of a percentage point increase or
decrease in the interest rate used would result in a change in the interest expense of approximately $4.7 million for the year ended December
31, 2022.
(p) Reflects tax effect of the adjustments above at PDC’s effective tax rate of 4.8 percent for the year ended December 31, 2021. PDC’s effective tax
rate differs from the amount that would be provided by applying the statutory U.S. federal income rate of 21 percent due to the valuation allowance
against our deferred income tax assets in effect as of December 31, 2021.
(q) Reflects income tax expense relating to Great Western’s historical pre-tax income applying PDC’s effective tax rate for the three months ended
March 31, 2022. Great Western was a limited liability company and not subject to entity-level federal income taxation.
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(r)

Reflects impact of the 4,007,018 PDC shares issued to owners of Great Western upon completion of the acquisition.

Note 4 - Supplemental Pro Forma Oil and Gas Information
The following tables present the estimated pro forma combined net proved developed and undeveloped crude oil, natural gas and NGL reserves as
of December 31, 2021 and 2020, along with a summary of changes in the quantities of net remaining proved reserves during the year ended December 31,
2021. The proved undeveloped reserves of Great Western are based on Great Western’s development plans and reserve estimation methodologies. Because
PDC will develop such proved undeveloped reserves in accordance with its own development plan and, in the future, will estimate proved undeveloped
reserves in accordance with its own methodologies, the estimates presented herein for Great Western may not be representative of PDC’s future proved
reserve estimates with respect to these properties or the reserve estimates which PDC would have reported if it had owned such properties as of December
31, 2021. We are currently undertaking an analysis to further refine the combined company’s pro forma reserve information that has not yet been
completed. The pro forma reserve information set forth below give effect to the acquisition as if it had been completed on January 1, 2021.
PDC
Historical

Great Western
Historical

Great Western
Historical
Natural Gas
(MMcf)

PDC Historical

Crude Oil, Condensate (MBbls)

PDC Historical

Great Western
Historical

NGLs (MBbls)

PDC Pro Forma
Combined
Total
(MBoe)

Proved Reserves:
Proved reserves, December 31, 2020
Revisions of previous estimates
Extensions, discoveries and other additions
Acquisition of reserves
Production

211,732
22,651
528
1,616
(22,682)

73,442
(10,044)
5,174
—
(7,513)

1,901,174
408,540
1,584
24,174
(175,747)

441,723
(23,534)
30,199
—
(38,958)

202,478
54,634
168
2,469
(19,360)

49,158
7,601
4,016
—
(5,155)

927,293
139,010
15,183
8,113
(90,494)

Proved reserves, December 31, 2021

213,845

61,059

2,159,725

409,430

240,389

55,620

999,105

December 31, 2020

86,330

22,935

860,877

201,084

91,702

21,834

399,795

December 31, 2021
Proved Undeveloped Reserves, as of:

97,420

23,526

1,088,700

212,011

120,132

28,340

486,203

December 31, 2020

125,402

50,507

1,040,297

240,639

110,776

27,324

527,498

December 31, 2021

116,425

37,533

1,071,025

197,419

120,257

27,280

512,902

Proved Developed Reserves, as of:

The following estimated pro forma standardized measure is not necessarily indicative of the results that might have occurred had the acquisition
been completed on January 1, 2021 and is not intended to be a projection of future results. Future results may vary significantly from the results reflected
because of various factors, including certain of those discussed under the heading “Item 1A. Risk Factors” included in the PDC 2021 Annual Report on
Form 10-K.
Standardized measure of discounted future net cash flows
The following table presents the estimated pro forma standardized measure of discounted future net cash flows (the “pro forma standardized
measure”) at December 31, 2021. The pro forma standardized measure information set forth below gives effect to the acquisition as if they had been
completed on January 1, 2021. The disclosures below were determined by referencing the “Standardized Measure of Discounted Future Net Cash Flows”
reported in the supplemental information to the consolidated financial statements of PDC contained in the PDC 2021 Annual Report on Form 10-K and
Great Western’s supplemental financial information to the audited financial statement included in this report. An explanation of the underlying
methodology applied, as required by SEC regulations, can be found within the aforementioned supplemental information to the consolidated financial
statements of PDC and other documents that have been incorporated by reference. The calculations assume the continuation of existing economic,
operating and contractual conditions at December 31, 2021.
As of December 31, 2021
PDC Historical

Great Western Historical
(in thousands)
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PDC
Pro Forma Combined

As of December 31, 2021
PDC Historical
Future estimated cash flows
Future estimated production costs
Future estimated development costs
Future estimated income tax expense (1)

$

Future net cash flows
10% annual discount for estimated timing of cash flows
Standardized measure of discounted future estimated net cash flows

$

PDC
Pro Forma Combined

Great Western Historical

26,143,031 $
(6,325,129)
(2,857,951)
(3,088,187)

6,625,320 $
(2,566,371)
(1,002,123)
(268,091)

32,768,351
(8,891,500)
(3,860,074)
(3,356,278)

13,871,764
(5,963,592)

2,788,735
(1,042,431)

16,660,499
(7,006,023)

7,908,172

$

1,746,304

$

9,654,476

_______________
(1)

Future estimated income tax expense of Great Western was calculated based on PDC’s tax assumptions as Great Western was a limited liability company not subject to entity-level
federal income taxation as of December 31, 2021.

Sources of Change in Discounted Future Net Cash Flows
The changes in the pro forma standardized measure of discounted future net cash flows relating to proved oil and natural gas reserves for the year
ended December 31, 2021 are as follows:

Year Ended December 31, 2021
PDC Historical

Great Western Historical (2)

Beginning of period
Sales of crude oil, natural gas and NGLs production, net of production costs
Net changes in prices and production costs
Extensions, discoveries and improved recovery, less related costs
Purchases of reserves
Development costs incurred during the period
Revisions of previous quantity estimates
Changes in estimated income taxes (1)
Net changes in future development costs
Accretion of discount
Timing and other

$

3,282,179
(2,106,287)
5,312,870
20,201
76,440
338,098
2,645,379
(1,628,304)
(168,332)
345,454
(209,526)

$

End of period

$

7,908,172

$

_______________
(1)
(2)

(in thousands)
566,494
(590,990)
1,636,771
230,014
—
78,944
19,103
(203,125)
115,524
56,649
(163,080)
1,746,304

PDC Pro Forma Combined
$

3,848,673
(2,697,277)
6,949,641
250,215
76,440
417,042
2,664,482
(1,831,429)
(52,808)
402,103
(372,606)

$

9,654,476

Future estimated income tax expense of Great Western was calculated based on PDC’s tax assumptions as Great Western was a limited liability company not subject to entity-level
federal income taxation as of December 31, 2021 and 2020,.
The Great Western historical standard measure of discounted future net cash flows relating to proved oi land natural gas reserves for the year ended December 31, 2021 combines the
periods before (“Predecessor”) and after (“Successor”) the Great Western’s recapitalization completed on February 22, 2021 as discussed in Note 1.
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